
  
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

June 5, 2012, Regular Meeting 
June 5, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 19, 2012 AGENDA  15 
5:35 4  ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET ORDINANCE MR. DERON GEOUQUE 17 
5:40 5  SHERIFF’S OFFICE LIVESCAN CONTRACT RENEWAL 

REQUESTS  
CAPTAIN JEFF VIRGINIA 33 

5:45 6  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING 
ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 

MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 47 

5:50 7  APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY (ARL) INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT REVISIONS 

MS. MOLLY 
WESTMORELAND 

63 

5:55 8  PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 
A.  REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF CIVIL PENALTY 

SETTLEMENT 
B. PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL 

OF GOVERNMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF 
GRANT MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE FOR THE 2009 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
SCATTERED SITE HOUSING REHABILITATION 
PROGRAM 

C. PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR BROOKSHIRE WETLANDS 
PROJECT 

MR. JOE FURMAN  
75 

 
77 

 
 
 
 
 

81 

6:00 9  PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  
A. PROPOSED CHANGES TO FIRE DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
B.  PROPOSED RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM (ROAP) GRANT APPLICATION FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

 
MR. JOE FURMAN  
MR. MIKE NORWOOD 

 
91 
97 

7:00 10  PARKS AND RECREATION PROPOSED APPALCART CONTRACT 
RENEWAL 

MR. STEPHEN POULOS 113 

7:05 11  PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 
A. Proposed AppalCART Contract Renewal  
B. FY 2013 Home and Community Care Block Grant 

(H&CCBG) Allocation Request 

MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE  
117 
121 



Page 2 
Tuesday, June 19, 2012 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

7:10 12  SANITATION MATTERS 
A. Bid Award Request to Pave Three Container Site 
B. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment 

on Proposed Updates to the Solid Waste Management 
Plan 

MR. J. V. POTTER  
125 
127 

7:15 13  BUDGET AMENDMENTS MS. MARGARET PIERCE 179 
7:20 14  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
1. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the 

Establishment of the Department of 
Communications and Emergency Services 
Supervised by the County Manager 

2. Proposed Management Control Agreement 
Regarding the Sheriff’s Office and 911 Dispatch 
Center 

3. Proposed Interlocal Governmental Agreement 
Regarding Consolidation of 911 Dispatch Services 
for Watauga County and the Town of Blowing 
Rock 

4. Establishment of the Watauga County 
Communications and Emergency Services 
Advisory Committee 

B. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
 

181 
 
 
 

185 
 
 

193 
 
 
 

197 
 
 

199 
7:25 15  PUBLIC COMMENT  200 
8:25 16  BREAK  200 
8:30 17  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 200 

 8:45 18  ADJOURN   
  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
June 5, 2012, Regular Meeting 
June 5, 2012, Closed Session 
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, June 5, 2012, 
at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County Administration 
Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 

Jim Deal, Commissioner 
Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:04 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the May 1, 2012, closed session 
minutes and the May 15, 2012, regular meeting minutes. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the May 1, 2012, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the May 15, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 5, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add the following items for consideration: 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

2



11.A.  Incident Management 
 
11.A.1  Public Hearing Request 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the June 5, 2012, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED 
DEMOLITION OF THE OLD HIGH SCHOOL 

 
A public hearing was scheduled to allow citizen comment on the proposed demolition of the old 
high school. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to open the public hearing at 
8:07 A.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed demolition of the old high school. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
The following citizens shared their concerns regarding the proposed demolition of the old high 
school: 
 

Edwin Gayle Henson – shared a presentation encouraging keeping the building. 
Jess McNeil – recommended saving the outdoor facilities and requested allowing the Habitat for 
Humanity’s Restore to salvage usable items from the building prior to demolition. 
Wayne B. Cato – stated that he had no comments. 
Glen Henson – requested the building be kept. 
Mark Heisy – stated that he agreed with the comments made by others. 
Edward Wilkie – suggested income generating uses for the property. 
Deborah Greene – shared concerns regarding the sale of the property. 
Max Gregory – stated that he was not in favor of tearing the building down.  
 
The following Commissioners shared their concerns regarding the proposed demolition as well: 
 

Jim Deal – stated that the Board was dealing with the best use of the entire property and shared 
that the Economic Development Commission was developing a plan to submit to the Board for 
potential economic development-based uses of the property.  
David Blust – stated that the citizens should not have to pay for the demolition of the old high 
school and the probability of using the building would be gone if it were torn down. 
Vince Gable – stated that he agreed with the citizen’s concerns; however, without raising taxes 
there were not funds to renovate the building which is currently a liability as the property would 
sell better without the building and the County would be responsible if someone were hurt in or 
around the building. 

061912 BCC Meeting

3



Tim Futrelle – stated that the demolition project should move forward as the bid package 
included consideration for hazardous materials and the low bidder’s references had been 
contacted.  
Nathan Miller – stated that he had toured the property the day before and although the building 
appeared structurally sound it would take extensive repairs to correct the damage done to the 
building by vandals and since there had not been any interest by those who had made offers on 
the property in keeping the building it should be removed as money should not be spent to repair 
a vacant building. 
 
There being no further public comment Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
9:08 A.M. 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, presented the following bids received for the 
demolition of the old Watauga High School: 
 

Vendor 5% Bid Bond or 
Cashiers’ Check 

Contractor’s 
License # 

Calendar Days 
to Complete 

Primary Bid 
Price 

Alternate I 
Bid Price 

NCM 
Charlotte, NC Bid Bond 65179 180 $829,800 $115,000 

D.H. Griffin Wrecking Co., Inc. 
Hickory, NC Bid Bond 35452 120 $379,990 $54,000 

NEO Corp. 
Canton, NC Bid Bond 17865 180 $328,000 $33,750 

MBH Enterprises, Inc., 
Rural Hall, NC Bid Bond 71456 180 $475,567 $7,227 

Taylor and Murphy 
Asheville, NC  Bid Bond 5174 180 $460,475 $42,000 

E. Luke Greene Co. 
Strawberry Plains, TN Bid Bond 21121 Asbestos 45 

Demo 150 $485,000 $50,000 

EHG, LLC 
Morrisville, NC Bid Bond 55919 120 $960,000 $90,000 

Tristar of America, Inc. 
Norcross, GA Bid Bond 69663 150 $619,000 $48,000 

Empire Dismantlement Corp.  
Grand Island, NY Bid Bond 51779 180 $843,000 $30,000 

Dore and Associates 
Contracting 
Bay City, MI 

Bid Bond 17486 300 $927,600 $19,300 

Clear Site Industrial, LLC 
Charlotte, NC Bid Bond 68679 150 $634,720 $32,500 

Belfor  
Charlotte, NC  None 63672 Not Listed $1,156,986 $0 
 

A total of 12 bids were received with NEO Corporation from Canton, NC, providing the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid in the total amount of $361,750 for the demolition of the primary 
building area and acceptance of Alternate I which included the demolition of the ancillary 
buildings.   
 
Mr. Marsh also recommended a $100,000 contingency for unforeseen issues should the Board 
accept the bid.  The issues could range from underground oil tanks and oil spills to lead and 
asbestos beyond the scope identified, etc. 

061912 BCC Meeting

4



County Attorney Eggers stated that the County was legally protected by the proposed contract 
which included the requirement to reduce to a level grade.  Mr. Eggers also stated that NEO 
Corporation had submitted a responsible and responsive bid. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to award the bid to NEO 
Corporation in the total amount of $361,750 which included the base bid in the amount of 
$328,000 and Alternate 1 in the amount of $33,750 and to add an additional $100,000 
contingency to the project to cover unforeseen issues. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-1(Blust) 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT UPDATE 
Ms. Beth Lovette, Director of Appalachian District Health Department, presented an update on 
health department matters which included information regarding the Department’s budget 
request. 
 
The report was for information only and, therefore, no action was required nor taken. 

JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION PROGRAM (JCPP) CERTIFICATION AND 
MEMBERSHIP FOR FY 2013 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, the County Manager's designee member of the Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Council (JCPC), presented the JCPC recommended FY 2013 funding allocation, certification, 
and membership roster.  The membership roster included the following appointees: 
 

Specified Members (G.S. 147-33.61) Name 

1)   School Superintendent or designee Clarissa Schmal 

2)   Chief of Police Kat Brackenridge 

3)   Local Sheriff or designee Dee Dee Rominger 

4)   District Attorney or designee John Middlebrook 

5)   Chief Court Counselor or designee Lisa Garland 

6)   Director, AMH/DD/SA, or designee Maggie Farrington 

7)   Director DSS or designee Mandy Garland 

8)   County Manager or designee Margaret Pierce 

9)   Substance Abuse Professional Murray Hawkinson 

10) Member of Faith Community Pan McCaslin 

11) County Commissioner Tim Futrelle 

12) Two Persons under age 18 
(State Youth Council Representative, if available) 

vacant 

Brian Greer 

061912 BCC Meeting

5



Specified Members (G.S. 147-33.61) Name 

13) Juvenile Defense Attorney Eric Eller 

14) Chief District Judge or designee Vacant 

15) Member of Business Community Evelyn Asher 

16) Local Health Director or designee Trish Lanier 

17) Rep. United Way/other non-profit Karee Mackey 

18) Representative/Parks and Rec. Stephen Poulos 

19) County Commissioner appointee Melissa Johnson 

20) County Commissioner appointee Jennifer Grubb 

21) County Commissioner appointee Dennis Aldridge 

22) County Commissioner appointee Mechelle Miller 

23) County Commissioner appointee Hillary Biggerstaff 

24) County Commissioner appointee Michael Potter 

25) County Commissioner appointee Amber Matthews 

 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Juvenile Crime 
Prevention Council Fiscal Year 2013 County funding allocation, certification, and membership 
roster as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
  

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 
Mr. Eric Woolridge, Director of Tourism Planning with the Watauga County Tourism 
Development Authority (TDA), gave an update on the proposed Memorandum of Understanding 
with the Department of Transportation regarding the encroachment on Pine Run Road where a 
paddle access area is being constructed with grant funds received by the TDA.  Mr. Woolridge 
stated that the TDA Board would review the request at their June 12, 2012, meeting and, if 
adopted by the TDA Board, a formal request would be presented at the June 19, 2012, Board of 
Commissioners meeting. 
 

The report was given for information only; therefore, action was not required nor taken. 

RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (ROAP) HEARING REQUEST - 
APPALCART 

Mr. Chris Turner requested a public hearing be scheduled on June 19, 2012, to allow citizen 
comment on the Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant application for FY 2013.  
Mr. Turner also introduced Mr. Mike Norwood, AppalCART’s Finance Officer, who will present 
the application at the public hearing. 

061912 BCC Meeting

6



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
June 19, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the Rural Operating Assistance 
Program Application for FY 2013. 
  

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

GRANT ACCEPTANCE FOR FORKLIFT PURCHASE 
At the February 21, 2012, Board meeting, Ms. Lisa Doty, Recycling Manager, was authorized to 
submit a grant to the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources for the 
purchase of a new forklift for the Sanitation Department’s recycling efforts.  Ms. Doty requested 
the Board accept the grant award in the amount of $14,200.  The new forklift was to replace the 
20-year-old forklift currently in use.  The grant was to be effective with the proposed Fiscal Year 
2013 budget, in which adequate funds have been appropriated for the purchase of the forklift.  
Bids for the purchase of the forklift were to be solicited and presented at a future meeting for 
Board approval.  Ms. Doty stated that additional funds could be allocated from the solid waste 
enterprise fund to supplement the purchase along with additional revenue expected from 
electronic recycling efforts and funds received through the surplus and auction of the current 
forklift through GovDeals.com. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to accept the grant, in the 
amount of $14,200, from the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
for the purchase of a new forklift to be used for the Sanitation Department’s recycling efforts. 
  

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
May 2012.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for May 2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for May 2012, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

061912 BCC Meeting

7



FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 

 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
283102-312111 Tax Revenue Todd Fire District  $3,500 
284340-469911 Payment to Todd Fire District $3,500  
283102-312106 Tax Revenue Zionville Fire District  $4,500 
284340-469906 Payment to Zionville Fire District $4,500  
283102-312105 Tax Revenue Stewart Simmons Fire District  $2,500 
284340-469905 Payment to Stewart Simmons Fire District $2,500  
283102-312104 Tax Revenue Beaver Dam Fire District  $3,000 
284340-469904 Payment to Beaver Dam Fire District $3,000  
283102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire District  $3,000 
284340-469901 Payment to Foscoe Fire District $3,000  
243102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Service District  $1,400 
244340-469901 Payment to Foscoe Service District $1,400  
243102-312108 Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Service District  $200 
244340-469908 Payment to Shawneehaw Service District $200  
 

The amendment recognized additional estimated fire tax district revenues and payments above 
budgeted amounts due to fire departments. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
293270-312009 Occupancy Tax Revenue  $92,500 
294140-449900 Administrative Fee $1,100  
294140-469900 Payment to Watauga County TDA $91,400  
 

The amendment recognized additional occupancy tax revenues estimates above budgeted 
amounts and payment due to Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority 
(TDA) for net occupancy tax and to Watauga County for statutory administrative collection fees. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103200-326600 ABC/5 cents a Bottle  $800 
105210-469852 ABC/5 cents a Bottle $800  
    

The amendment recognized additional estimated revenues and expenditures for Alcoholic 
Beverage Control funds. 
    

Account # Description Debit Credit 
143585-323000 State and Federal Daycare Subsidies  $6,157 
145850-440900 Daycare Subsidies $6,157  
143585-323002 Smart Start Daycare Subsidies  $55,426 
145850-440901 Smart Start Daycare Subsidies $55,426  
    

The amendment recognized increases in DSS funding for daycare subsidies from state and 
federal sources.  These allocations are for direct services provided for clients. 

061912 BCC Meeting

8



 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-349910 NC ADM Capital Funds  $102,750 
105911-470007 Parkway School Roof $39,000  
105911-470008 Hardin Park School Roof $63,750  
    

The amendment recognized the award of NC ADM Capital funds applied for by the Watauga 
County Board of Education and approved by the Board of Commissioners on March 17, 2012.  
Local match was to be provided by the Watauga County Board of Education. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to excuse Commissioner Blust, 
who needed to leave the meeting for a prior commitment, at 9:55 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Proposed Lease Amendment on High School Property 
Ms. Pierce stated that, as a part of the refinancing of the new high school debt, an amendment 
was required to the current lease signed on April 1, 2008, between the County and Board of 
Education.  The change was procedural in which the Watauga County Board of Education lien 
position was to be shifted to follow the financing documents.  No other changes in terms or 
conditions were required to be made.  Ms. Pierce stated that the Board of Education had 
approved the lease amendment. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the lease 
modification as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM POSITION SPECIFIC TRAINING 
Mr. Steve Sudderth, requested approval of “position specific training” for incident management.  
The request was made after the completion of the overall incident management training.  Wiland 
Associates was the firm that conducted the training and was recommended to provide the 
“position specific training.”   
 
If approved, funding for the training would be provided by Homeland Security Incident 
Management funds.  The funding was available through two grants, in the amounts of $8,490.20 
and $7,594.05, which were originally approved by the Board to be utilized by Caldwell 
Community College and Technical Institute for training.  These funds were not utilized and 

061912 BCC Meeting

9



returned to the North Carolina Emergency Management Office.  Mr. Sudderth requested and was 
approved to re-appropriate the funds for the incident management team position specific training.  
The grants were to expire at the end of June with the requirement that unspent funds be returned 
to FEMA. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to waive the County policy 
requiring three (3) bids for purchases over $15,000 and approve the use of the FEMA grant funds 
totaling $16,084.25 for incident management team position specific training to be provided by 
Wiland Associates as presented by Mr. Sudderth. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Meat Camp VFD Request for Support of Lease Purchase Agreement 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Meat Camp Volunteer Fire Department had requested a 
letter of support from the County to assist in obtaining financing to purchase equipment for 
operations.  The letter confirmed that Meat Camp Volunteer Fire Department received both 
County and fire tax funding.  The letter of support, however, does not obligate the County. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the Chairman’s 
signature on the letter as requested. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

A1.  Meat Camp and Deep Gap Fire Departments Request to Adjust Their Mutual Boundary 
County Manager Geouque stated that Planning and Inspections Director, Mr. Joe Furman, was 
contacted recently by the Meat Camp and Deep Gap Volunteer Fire Departments with a request 
to adjust their mutual boundary.  In order to make this change, the Board of Commissioners must 
hold a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statute 69-25.11. Since a public hearing on other 
fire district changes was scheduled for June 19, the County Manager recommended that the 
scope of the hearing be expanded to include the above requested changes as well. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to expand the public hearing to 
allow citizen comment on proposed fire district boundary changes scheduled for June 19, 2012, 
at 6:00 P.M. to include proposed changes to the Meat Camp and Deep Gap Volunteer Fire 
Departments. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

061912 BCC Meeting

10



B. Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Discussion 
County Manager Geouque stated that, at the Board’s last budget work session, direction was 
given to staff to request additional information from the Health Department and Humane Society 
to assist the Board in the decision making process regarding funding for Fiscal Year 2013.  The 
County Manager presented the below list of changes as requested by the Board and now included 
in the proposed budget: 
 

Revenues   
Cable TV Franchise Fees increase $10,000 
   

Expenditures   
Board of Elections increase travel and part time salaries  $8,790 
Board of Education increase current capital outlay $18,826 
Recreation, Special Populations increase supplies and travel $850 
Special Allocations 
 

decrease Children’s Playhouse 
decrease WeCAN 

$2,500 
$1,000 

Emergency Services decrease cell allowance $576 
Tax Administration decrease salaries $6,000 
General Administration 
 

decrease Professional Services-Architects   
decrease miscellaneous expenses 

$7,540 
$850 

 

Chairman Deal stated that representatives from the Watauga Humane Society were available to 
present the information requested. 
 
Chairman Miller stated that Watauga County Board of Education Chair, Deborah Miller, was 
also present to make a request.  Ms. Miller stated that the Board of Education would like to 
schedule a meeting to discuss possible funding for raises for school personnel. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Board was making contingency plans for the Board of 
Education budget dependent upon what the State did with their budget. 
 
Dr. Jan Watson, Chair, and Dr. Dru Henson, Treasurer, of the Watauga Humane Society, 
presented the Board with additional information regarding their budget and requested the Board 
increase the funding for FY 2013 from the proposed $78,000 to $125,000. 
 
The County Manager presented an email request from the Watauga County Library as well. 
 
As the proposed budget was scheduled for consideration of adoption at the June 19, 2012, Board 
meeting, the County Manager stated that the Board could accept the proposed budget without 
recommending additional changes; request changes to be presented for adoption at the June 19 
meeting; or schedule an additional work session prior to the June 19th meeting.  In the event that 
changes were made by the Board at the June 19 meeting, a recess could be called to allow for the 
preparation of a revised Budget Ordinance or a special meeting could be called for the adoption 
of the budget. 
 
No action was taken. 

061912 BCC Meeting

11



C. July Meeting Schedule Discussion 
County Manager Geouque stated that, historically, the Board cancelled the first regular meeting 
in July due to the recent adoption of the annual budget and the beginning of a new fiscal year.  In 
addition, this year, the second primary was scheduled for July 17, 2012, the date of the second 
regular meeting in July.  The Commissioners’ Board Room was used as an official polling place 
on election days. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to cancel the July 3, 2012, 
regular meeting and reschedule the July 17, 2012, regular meeting to July 24, 2012, at 5:30 PM. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

D. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Region D Development Corporation was a Certified 
Development Company that assisted the US Small Business Administration in delivering small 
business loans to the region.  They also assisted in marketing and packaging loans for small 
businesses throughout the region.  Per their bylaws, each county was required to appoint four 
persons each year to serve as members of the Development Corporation.  Representative 
categories were local government (1), private lending institution (1), and community 
organization or a business organization (2).  Watauga County’s current appointees are Mr. 
Fowler Cooper (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield (Community Organization); Mr. Jim 
Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins (Private Lending Institution). 
 
The above nominations were tabled to ensure appropriate representation of the categories. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated Chairman Miller’s term on the Social Services Board was set to 
expire on June 30, 2012.  The County Manager mentioned that a request had been made for 
appointment of the Social Services Board seat held by Ms. Mary Moretz as well; however, it was 
the responsibility of the Social Services Board rather than the Board of Commissioners to make 
that appointment. 
 
Chairman Miller reappointed himself to continue to serve as a member of Social Services Board. 

E.  Announcements 
A public hearing will be held Tuesday, June 19, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on 
proposed fire district boundary changes involving Stewart Simmons, Deep Gap, and Boone 
districts.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Chairman Miller reviewed the following policy for public comment speakers:  

 

 The Board does hereby establish a time period of sixty (60) minutes, for an open forum, at the end of its 
second regular meeting in each month to hear citizen comments. 

061912 BCC Meeting

12



 

 Length of comment for each speaker may be limited to 2-5 minutes as decided per meeting. 
 

 Comments are to be directed to the Board as a whole.  The forum is intended to provide the Board of 
Commissioners an opportunity to hear citizens.  It is not intended to subject the Board to answering 
impromptu questions.  Citizens will be expected to be civil in their language and presentation and not to 
engage in slander or name-calling. 

 

 During the 60 minute open forum, speakers should not discuss any of the following: 
a. Matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including of the person 

addressing the Board; 
b. Matters in current or anticipated litigation. 

 
The following citizens shared their comments: 
 
Mr. Edwin Gayle Henson continued comments from the earlier public hearing regarding the old 
high school demolition 
 
Mr. Max Gregory commented that he disagreed with procedures concerning the old high school 
property. 
 
Ms. Deborah Greene continued comments from the earlier public hearing regarding the old high 
school demolition. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 9:29 A.M., Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to resume the open meeting at 
10:15 A.M. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:17 A.M. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

061912 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 19, 2012 AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Ordinance is presented for adoption.  Below is a list of changes 
that were requested by the Board and which have been incorporated into the proposed budget: 
 
Revenues   
Cable TV Franchise Fees increase $10,000 
   

Expenditures   
Board of Elections increase travel and part time salaries  $8,790 
Board of Education increase current capital outlay $18,826 
Recreation, Special Populations increase supplies and travel $850 
Special Allocations 
 

decrease Children’s Playhouse 
decrease WeCAN 

$2,500 
$1,000 

Emergency Services decrease cell allowance $576 
Tax Administration decrease salaries $6,000 
General Administration 
 

decrease Professional Services-Architects   
decrease miscellaneous expenses 

$7,540 
$850 

 
Also, included is an email from the Watauga County Library updating the status of their budget 
request.  The Board may approve the proposed budget as presented, request changes, or schedule 
an additional work session.  In the event that major changes are made or the Board wishes to 
schedule an additional work session, staff would recommend the Board recess the current 
meeting and provide a date to resume the meeting to adopt the budget prior to the end of June as 
required by North Carolina General Statutes.   
 
Board action is required.  
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

17



SEC. I GENERAL FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Taxes, Ad Valorem Taxes, FY 2012/13 $26,703,076  
Taxes, Prior Years $500,000
Tax Advertising & Interest $130,000

Taxes, Other 1% Local Option Sales $4,959,375
1983-1/2% Local Option Sales $2,095,500
1986-1/2% Local Option Sales $2,511,215
Real Prop. Transfer Tax (Excise Stamps) $300,000
ABC 5 cents per Bottle $18,500
Privilege License Tax-Cable TV $335,000
Gross Receipts Tax-Vehicles $30,000  

 Gross Receipts-Heavy Equip. $6,500

Intergovernmental Revenues   Payments in Lieu of Taxes $20,000
  Court Facilities Fees $135,000

Permits and Fees Gun Permits $5,000
Serving Civil Summons $50,000
Jail & Officer's Fees $20,000
Drug Fees Awarded By Court $2,000
Gun Storage Fee-Domestic Violence $2,500
Inspection Fees $180,000
Register of Deeds Fees $280,000
Register of Deeds Fees-Supplemental 10% Fee $34,000
Fire Inspection Fees $3,000
Occupany Tax Collections Fee $18,000
Concealed Weapons permits $20,000
Concealed Weapons-Fingerprints $5,000  

Investment Earnings Interest Earned on Investments $75,000

Restricted Intergovernmental Emergency Management Grant $30,000
Veterans Service Grant $1,400
Soil & Water Conservation Grant $3,600
Soil Technician Cost Share Program $24,000
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Grant $111,170
Project on Aging
  -In Home Services (Social Services) $15,340
  -HCCBG $261,640
  -Medicaid Reimbursement & Fees $100,000
  -Donations $18,000
  -USDA $25,000
National Forest Service-Schools $575

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County, North Carolina,
meeting in regular session this 19th day of June, 2012, that the following fund revenues and
departmental expenditures, together with certain restrictions and authorizations, are adopted:

061912 BCC Meeting

18



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

Functional Revenues Recreation Program Revenues
Facility Rentals $7,200
Aquatics $71,000
Athletics $130,000
Special Populations $40,000
Special Programs $28,000
Senior Games $6,000
Donations $1,000

Sales & Services
   TDA Financial Services $12,000

Blowing Rock Communications Fee $165,015
   Sales of Tax Maps $750
   Town Tax Accounts $101,700
   NC DMV Fees $75,000
   Passport Fees/Photos $13,000
   Reimbursement for Prisoners $6,000
   Tag Office Notary Fees $28,000
   Data Processing $200
   Sale of Fixed Assets $35,000
   Election Revenues $500
   Medical Fees-Inmates $4,000

 
Miscellaneous Revenues
   Other Miscellaneous Revenues $54,883
   Rents $150,000
   Inmate Phone Rev. $19,000
   Sales Tax Hold Harmless -Medicaid Relief $675,000

911 Implementation/Addressing Fee $57,770
   Medical Director $12,000

Transfer from Other Funds  
  Transfer From Capital Reserve Fund $0

Appropriations of Fund Balance
   New Appropriations $650,000
   Register of Deeds Enhancement Fund $28,463

TOTAL REVENUES-
GENERAL FUND $41,400,872

061912 BCC Meeting

19



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

B. Expenditures Authorized 

General Government Governing Body $62,897
Administration $320,276
Finance $356,487
Tax Administration $1,154,249
Tax Revaluation $226,817
License Plate Agency $157,307
Legal Services $65,500
Court Facilities $1,500
Elections $321,692
Register of Deeds $473,060
General Administration $1,026,906
Information Technology $762,858

Total $4,929,549

General Services Maintenance $994,513
Public Buildings
  -Courthouse $122,225
  -East Annex - Rock Building $30,671
  -Administration $25,225  
  -EMS $1,000
  -Hannah $6,745
  -NRSA Houses $2,500
  - Health Department $54,156
  -Appalcart $2,100
  -Library $52,460
  -Old CCC&TI $1,735
  -Western Watauga Community Center $61,119
  -Parking Lots $1,700
  -West Annex $69,410
  -Human Services Center $86,251
  -Appalachian Enterprise Center $14,325
  -Law Enforcement Center $206,730
  -Old High School $650,000
  -Recreation Administration Offices $2,000
  -Aquatics Center $144,305
  -Optimist/Maintenance Facility $35,576
  -Fields/Parks $58,090
  -Old Cove Creek School/Gym $16,635
  -Brookshire Road Park $18,850
  -Anne Marie Drive Fields $23,925
  -Brookshire Soccer Complex $14,225

Total $2,696,471

Public Safety Sheriff $3,231,768
Jail $1,973,736
Emergency Services $728,528
Emergency Management/Fire Protection $662,024
Planning & Inspections $571,528
Medical Examiner $25,000
Ambulance $985,520
Animal Care & Control $123,826
Forestry $53,635

Total $8,355,565

061912 BCC Meeting

20



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

Economic & Physical Development Appalcart $67,495
Economic Development Commission $48,500
Cooperative Extension Service $246,191
Soil Conservation $123,655
Special Appropriations $405,131

Total $890,972

Human Services Public Health $541,127
Mental Health $221,194
Project on Aging $1,210,060
Veteran's Service $109,032

Total $2,081,413

Education Watauga County Board of Education - 
   Current Expense $12,180,620
Caldwell Community College & Technical 
   Institute - Watauga Division - Current Expense $810,980

Total $12,991,600

Cultural and Recreational Library $495,000
Recreation $885,532

Total $1,380,532

Transfers to Other Funds Transfer to Public Assistance Fund $1,484,731
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund $0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund $6,590,039

Total $8,074,770

Total Expenditures-   
General Fund $41,400,872

061912 BCC Meeting

21



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. II PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Federal & State Grants $3,458,855
Misc. Revenue $24,680
Transfers from General Fund $1,484,731
Interest Earned on Investments $63,485

Total Revenues-
Public Assistance Fund $5,031,751

B. Expenditures Authorized: Administration $2,854,553
Child Support Enforcement $188,004
Programs $1,989,194

Total Expenditures-
Public Assistance Fund $5,031,751

SEC. III CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Appropriation of Fund Bal-School Debt Service $1,500,000

Total Revenues-
Capital Reserve Fund $1,500,000

B. Expenditures Authorized: Transfer to Debt Service Fund $1,500,000

Total Expenditures-
Capital Reserve Fund $1,500,000

061912 BCC Meeting

22



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. IV FEDERAL SUBSTANCE ABUSE TAX FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Equitable Sharing Funds $14,000

Total Revenues-
Federal Substance Abuse Tax Fund $14,000

B. Expenditures Authorized: Capital Outlay $14,000

Total Expenditures-
Federal Substance Abuse Tax Fund $14,000

SEC. V STATE SUBSTANCE ABUSE TAX FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Interest Earned on Investments $200
Controlled Substance Tax $20,000

Total Revenues-
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund $20,200

B. Expenditures Authorized: Operations $20,200

Total Expenditures-
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund $20,200

061912 BCC Meeting

23



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. VI EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SURCHARGE FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Emergency Telephone Surcharge $251,533
Fund Balance Appropriated $51,152

Total Revenues-
Emergency Telephone Surcharge Fund $302,685

B. Expenditures Authorized: Implemental Functions $142,585
Software $23,000
Employee Training $5,100
Furniture & Phone $113,000
Hardware $19,000

Total Expenditures-
Emergency Telephone Surcharge Fund $302,685

SEC. VII  RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Interest on Delinquent Taxes $3,785
Prior Years-Boone Rural $25,000
Prior Years-Foscoe Rural $1,250
Prior Years-Shawneehaw Rural $90
Prior Years-Beech Mtn Rural $30
Taxes-Ad Valorem - 2012/13 Boone Rural $717,338
Taxes-Ad Valorem - 2012/13 Foscoe Rural $66,422
Taxes-Ad Valorem - 2012/13 Shawneehaw Rural $49,679
Taxes-Ad Valorem - 2012/13 Cove Creek Rural $302
Taxes-Ad Valorem - 2012/13 Beech Mtn. Rural $1,718

Total Revenues-
 Rural Fire Serv. Dist. Fund $865,614

B. Expenditures Authorized: Payable to Boone Rural Fire Service District $745,838
Payable to Foscoe Rural Fire Service District $67,922
Payable to Shawneehaw Rural Fire Service District $49,799
Payable to Cove Creek Rural Fire Service District $302
Payable to Beech Mtn. Rural Fire Service District $1,753

 
Total Expenditures-

 Rural Fire Serv. Dist. Fund $865,614

061912 BCC Meeting

24



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. VIII FIRE TAX DISTRICTS FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Interest on Delinquent Taxes $9,860
Prior Year Taxes - Foscoe $7,500
Ad Valorem Taxes 2012/13 Foscoe $444,235
Prior Year Taxes - Beaver Dam $2,000
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Beaver Dam $104,258
Prior Year Taxes-Stewart Simmons $7,000
Ad Valorem Taxes-F/Y 2012/13 Stewart Simmons $141,187
Prior Year Taxes - Zionville $2,200
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Zionville $102,071
Prior Year Taxex-Cove Creek $7,200
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Cove Creek $212,871
Prior Year Taxes - Shawneehaw $3,000
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Shawneehaw $88,287
Prior Year Taxes-Meat Camp $3,200
Ad Valorem Taxes-F/Y 2012/13 Meat Camp $196,452
Prior Year Taxes - Deep Gap $4,800
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Deep Gap $168,453
Prior Year Taxes - Todd $800
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Todd $61,017
Prior Year Taxes - Blowing Rock $7,500
Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012/13 Blowing Rock $454,021
Prior Year Taxes-Meat Camp/Creston $250
Ad Valorem Taxes-F/Y 2012/13 Meat Camp/Creston $2,498

Total Revenues-
Fire Districts Fund $2,030,661

B. Expenditures Authorized: Payable to Foscoe Fire District $453,435
Payable to Beaver Dam Fire District $106,988
Payable to Stewart Simmons Fire District $149,287
Payable to Zionville Fire District $105,121
Payable to Cove Creek $221,371
Payable to Shawneehaw Fire District $91,797
Payable to Meat Camp Fire District $200,452
Payable to Deep Gap Fire District $174,253
Payable to Todd Fire District $62,072
Payable to Blowing Rock Fire District $463,061
Payable to Creston Fire District $2,823

Total Expenditures-
Fire Districts Fund $2,030,661

SEC. IX Watauga District U TDA

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Occupancy Tax $800,000

Total Revenues-
Watauga District U TDA $800,000

B. Expenditures Authorized: Admn. Exp.-Occ. Tax Collections $18,000
Pay to Watauga Dist. U TDA $782,000

Total Expenditures-
Watauga District U TDA $800,000

061912 BCC Meeting

25



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. X DEBT SERVICE

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Transfer from General Fund $5,289,992
Transfer from General Fund - Sales Tax -Schools $1,300,047
Transfer from Cap. Reserve Fund $1,500,000
Transfer from Solidwaste Fund $57,653

Total Revenues-
Debt Service Fund $8,147,692

B. Expenditures Authorized: Debt Service-Education $7,392,045
Debt Service-Other $755,647

Total Expenditures-
Debt Service Fund $8,147,692

SEC. XI SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

A. Revenues Anticipated: SOURCE AMOUNT

Landfill/Greenbox User Fee Interest & Advertising $16,000
Landfill Tipping Fees $1,300,000
Landfill User Fees $1,783,000
Green Box User Fees $492,000
Tire Disposal Tax $45,000
Solid Waste Disposal Tax $20,000
Residential Tire Disposal $3,500
White Goods $14,000
Solid Waste Reduction Grant $14,200
Dumpster Pickup $16,843
Interest Earnings $5,000
Rents $1,200
Sale of Recycled Scrap $350,000
Sale of Fixed Assets $30,000

Total Revenues-
Solid Waste Enterprise Fund $4,090,743

B. Expenditures Authorized: Sanitation Department $3,812,794
Recycling $150,687
Debt Service $69,609
Transfer to Debt Service Fund $57,653

Total Expenditures-
Solid Waste Enterprise Fund $4,090,743

                                                                                                                                                                                                             

061912 BCC Meeting

26



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC.  XII FOSCOE FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XIII DEEP GAP FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XIV BOONE RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT TAX

SEC.  XV FOSCOE RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XVI COVE CREEK RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XVII SHAWNEEHAW RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XVIII BEECH MTN. RURAL FIRE SERVICE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XIX TODD FIRE DISTRICT TAX

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Deep Gap Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $352,560,200
and a 96.59% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Cove Creek Rural Fire Service District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$583,700 and a 100% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal
year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Shawneehaw Rural Fire Service District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation
of $10,247,300 and a 98.42% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the
2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Foscoe Rural Fire Service District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on total base valuation of
$134,963,900 and a 97.64% collection rate which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Foscoe Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $906,271,500 and
an established 97.71% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced during the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Boone Rural Fire Service District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$1,475,990,400 and a 96.1% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the
2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Beech Mountain Rural Fire Service District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base
valuation of $3,441,900 and a 99.89% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in
the 2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.07 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Todd Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $85,250,000 and a
97.73% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal year.

061912 BCC Meeting

27



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. XX BEAVER DAM FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXI BLOWING ROCK RURAL FIRE DISTRICT TAX
 

SEC. XXII SHAWNEEHAW FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXIII ZIONVILLE FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXIV COVE CREEK FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXV MEAT CAMP/CRESTON FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXVI STEWART SIMMONS FIRE DISTRICT TAX

SEC. XXVII COUNTY TAX RATE ESTABLISHED

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Blowing Rock Rural Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$926,100,000 and a 97.77% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Meat Camp Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $402,499,700
and a 96.72% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.03 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Meat Camp/Creston Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$11,602,700 and a 89.9% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Stewart Simmons Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$271,674,300 and a 97.78% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.313 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for
Watauga County for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $8,719,402,100 and
an estimated 97% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced during the 2010/11 fiscal
year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Shawneehaw Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$181,563,600 and a 96.83% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Cove Creek Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $435,900,000
and a 96.05% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Beaver Dam Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of
$215,750,000 and a 97.09% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11
fiscal year.

An ad valorem tax rate of $0.05 per $100 at full valuation is hereby established as the official tax rate for the
Zionville Fire District for this fiscal year 2012/13. This rate is based on a total base valuation of $215,336,300
and a 96.54% collection rate, which does not exceed the collection rate experienced in the 2010/11 fiscal year.

061912 BCC Meeting

28



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. XXVIII SOLID WASTE FEES ESTABLISHED

Commercial & Other Non-Residential Tipping Fees - $49 per ton (includes scrap metal & demolitions)
Waste amounts less than one ton will be charged a prorated fee of $49 per ton
Residential Landfill Fee (per residence County-wide) - $62 per year
Green Box Fee (per residence, non-municipal only) - $25 per year
Brush/Stump tipping fee - $42.00 ton 
Small animal carcass disposal fee - $5.00
Large animal carcass disposal fee - $25.00
Tire trailer rental - $75.00 per trailer drop

SEC. XXIX PLANNING, INSPECTIONS FEES ESTABLISHED

Building Permit $.30/ square foot heated space
$.15/ square foot unheated space

Mobile Home $75.00 single wide/$100 double wide
Modular Home $300.00 + $.15/square foot for basement
Sign Permit $50/on premise/$100.00 for billboard
Electrical/Alteration $75.00
Trip Fee $75.00
Misc. Inspection $50.00
Penalty for building
without a permit
Grading permit $150.00 per acre or part thereof
Floodplain Devel. $150.00
Zoning/Watershed/HILUO $40.00/permit/$100.00 site plan

Subdivision Plat Fees/
Manf. Home Park Fees
Road Name Change $500.00
Wireless Comm. Tower Site $750.00
Sexually Oriented Business $1,000.00
Admn. Fees for Refunds $30.00+ $75.00 per inspection done

SEC. XXX FIRE CODE FEES AND PENALTIES ESTABLISHED

Special User Permits for Specific Times:
Fireworks-Public Display $25
Tents & Air Structures
( 30 day maximum)
Temporary kiosks or
Merchandising Displays
Insecticide fogging or
fumigation
Explosive Materials:
  Blasting Permits:
  Annually (1 Year) $100
  48 Hours $40
Special Assembly:  
  Gun show, craft show, etc $25
Bowling Pin & Alley:
  Resurfacing & Refinishing $25
Any other Special Function: Requiring Fire Prevention
  Bureau inspection & Approval $25
Special Test, Inspections and Services:
Fire Report Copies $2
Existing Systems Tests:
Sprinkler Certification Test $25
Fire Alarm Testing $25
Standpipe Cert. Test $25
Grease Removal Test $25
Fixed Fire Suppression Test $25
Day Care Inspection $25
Residential Custodial Care
& Nursing Homes

$30.00 per lot or bldg. for all subdivision plats of 
two lots or more

$25

$25

Double building permit fees.  May be subject to 
additional trip fees if necessary

$300.00 appeals, conditional use permits, 
variances $400.00 amendments

$25

$25

061912 BCC Meeting

29



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

FIRE CODE FEES & PENALTIES ESTABLISHED -  Continued

Certification of Occupancy $25
Inspections
Underground Storage Tanks:
  Removal (per tank) $30
  New Installations (per tank) $50
Hydrant Installations:
  private contractors only $30
New Sprinkler Systems:
  Per square foot $0.05
Sprinkler Renovations $50
Standpipes $30
New Alarm Systems $35
Alarm System Renovations $50
Fixed Fire Supression 
  Systems $35
Renovations to the systems $25
Fire Marshall  Fire Reports $5

SEC. XXXI

A. 

 
B.

C.

D.

E.

SEC. XXXII RESTRICTIONS - COUNTY MANAGER  (BUDGET OFFICER)

A.

B.

C.

1.  Debt Service Fund
 

D.

He may make interfund loans for a period of not more than 60 days.

The County Manager (Budget Officer) shall be compensated $4,038.46
salary on a bi-weekly basis for FY 2012/13.

Utilization of appropriations established in the following funds may be
accomplished only with the express approval of the Board.

The County Manager shall be authorized to reallocate contingency funds
from the General Administration budget. Such transfers or expenditures
shall be reported to the Board at its next regular meeting, and recorded in
the minutes per NC General Statute 150-13(b)(3).

Salary increases shall be granted in accordance with the official pay plan
of Watauga County, duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners.

SPECIAL AUTHORIZATION - COUNTY MANAGER AS 
BUDGET OFFICER

The County Manager shall serve as Budget Officer and shall be
authorized to reallocate departmental appropriations among the various
objects of expenditure as he believes necessary.

The County Manager shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental
transfers, in the same fund, not to exceed 10% of the appropriated
monies for the department whose allocation is reduced. Notation of all
such transfers shall be made to the Board at the next regularly scheduled
Board meeting.

Interfund transfers established in the budget document, may be
accomplished without recourse to the Board.

The interfund transfers of monies, except as noted in XXXII (paragraphs C
and D), shall be accomplished by Board authorization only.

061912 BCC Meeting

30



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
BUDGET ORDINANCE

FY 2012/13

SEC. XXXIII UTILIZATION OF BUDGET AND BUDGET ORDINANCE

Nathan A. Miller, Chairman

ATTEST:

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board

 (SEAL)

State derived reimbursement revenues are budgeted based on current
State of North Carolina law. If these reimbursements are eliminated or
further reduced, these alterations will be reflected by budget amendments
at a later date.

This Ordinance and the Budget Document shall be the basis of the
financial plan for the Watauga County Government during the 2012/13
fiscal year. The Budget Officer shall administer the budget, and he shall
insure that operating officials are provided guidance and sufficient details
to implement their appropriate portion of the budget. The accounting
section shall establish records which are in consonance with the budget
and this ordinance and the appropriate statutes of the State of North
Carolina.

061912 BCC Meeting

31



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Tuesday, June 05, 2012 3:28 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: Library's Medical Insurance

6-19-2012 Budget section. 
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Molly Westmoreland [mailto:MWestmoreland@arlibrary.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, June 05, 2012 2:45 PM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Cc: Monica Caruso 
Subject: Library's Medical Insurance 
 
Hi, Deron. 
 
Recent changes in staffing have apparently lowered our risk and we are now looking at a better medical insurance plan at a 
lower cost.  The Regional Board has approved the plan which will only increase our premiums by 1.6%, though of course some of 
the expense has been passed along to the staff in the form of deductibles.  Still, we are able to pay their full premium.   What a 
relief!   
 
Any increase in the Watauga County Library’s budget, should that become possible, would now go toward providing a small 
increase in staff salaries, without having to use any of it for insurance costs. 
 
Thanks so much for your help and support during this difficult process! 
 

Molly Westmoreland 
Director of Libraries 
Appalachian Regional Library  
148 Library Drive 
West Jefferson, NC 28694 
336‐846‐2041 ext. 228 
mwestmoreland@arlibrary.org 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

32



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE LIVESCAN CONTRACT RENEWAL REQUESTS 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Captain Virginia will request the Board approve maintenance agreements for two (2) livescan 
machines for the Sheriff’s Office.  The units are used for processing criminal requirements and 
non-criminal fingerprints.  The total amount of the contracts is $9,405 and will be effective July 
1, 2012 through June 30, 2013.  Funds have been budgeted in the proposed FY 2013 Budget and 
the agreements are required to be returned by June 30, 2012 to avoid a 10% recertification and 
reimplementation fee. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the agreements as present in the amount of $9,405. 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

33



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Jeff Virginia
Sent: Tuesday, June 12, 2012 3:17 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: Upcoming Service contracts
Attachments: Livescan 0.pdf; Livescan 1.pdf

Anita, 
These maintenance agreements are for the 2 livescan machines that we have at the Law Enforcement Center. One is located in 
the Detention Center that is used to process criminal requirements and the other is located in the administrative offices and is 
used for processing non criminal fingerprints (CCW and other civil requests required by law). 
 
Thanks, 
Jeff 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE EMAIL ADDRESS CHANGE 
 
Captain Jeff Virginia 
Watauga County Sheriff's Office 
184 Hodges Gap Road 
Boone, North Carolina 28607 
Communications (828)264‐3761 
Office      (828)265‐7612 
Cell        (828)265‐6900 
Fax         (828)265‐7617 
Email      Jeff.Virginia@watgov.org  
 
This email and any files transmitted with it could contain confidential information and are intended solely for the use of the 
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or 
copy this e‐mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e‐mail if you have received this e‐mail by mistake and delete this e‐
mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any 
action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

34



061912 BCC Meeting

35



061912 BCC Meeting

36



061912 BCC Meeting

37



061912 BCC Meeting

38



061912 BCC Meeting

39



061912 BCC Meeting

40



061912 BCC Meeting

41



061912 BCC Meeting

42



061912 BCC Meeting

43



061912 BCC Meeting

44



061912 BCC Meeting

45



061912 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge, Watauga TDA, will present a Memorandum of Understanding regarding the 
encroachment on Pine Run Road for a paddle access.  The TDA Board approved the project at 
their June 12, 2012, meeting.   
 
Board action is requested to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation to construct a public river access on Pine Run Road with 
the Watauga County TDA to be responsible for all costs associated with the construction and 
future maintenance of the facility. 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

47



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, WCTDA Tourism Planner 
  
Date:  June 12, 2012 
 
Re:   Pine Run Paddle Access/ NCDOT Encroachment Agreement  
 
 
In January 2012 the Watauga County Board of Commissioners and the Watauga County Tourism 
Development Authority Board of Directors authorized TDA staff to apply for a NC Recreation 
Trails Program grant to improve river access along the South Fork New River at Pine Run Road 
and Green Valley Park. 
 
The WCTDA has received notification that we have been recommended for funding in the 
amount of $75,000, provided we have secured an encroachment agreement from NCDOT for the 
Pine Run Access by August 1st. 
 
NCDOT has provided the encroachment agreement documents, which have been reviewed and 
approved by the county attorney. All environmental permits for Pine Run construction have been 
secured and are also pending the encroachment agreement. 
 
The WCTDA Board of Directors voted in favor of this project at their June 12th meeting, 
approved the $18,750 required as matching funds for this grant, and authorize staff to move 
forward with this project.  
 
 
Recommended Action  

 
Authorize Watauga County to enter into an encroachment agreement with NCDOT for 
the purpose of constructing a public river access at Pine Run Road bridget, provided the 
WCTDA commits to all costs associated with the construction and future maintenance of 
the facility. 

 
Attachments 

1. Encroachment Documents 
2. Engineered Plan 
3. Grant Award Letter 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

48



VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

(Check Appropriate Box)

Permits from the N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources and the 
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers are not required for this project.  However, all applicable
federal and state regulations have been followed.

The required permits from the N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources
and the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers have been obtained for this project.  Copies of
permits and Completion Certificates are attached.

All applicable NPDES Stormwater Permit requirements have been met for this project.
(The applicant should contact the N.C. Division of Water Quality in Raleigh to determine
if a stormwater permit is required.)

The project is in compliance with all applicable sedimentation and erosion control laws
and regulations.

Project Name: __________________________

Township: __________________________    County:     _____________________

Project Engineer: __________________________    Phone No.:  _____________________

Project Contact: __________________________

    Applicant’s Name: _____________________________                         P.E. SEAL

    Date Submitted: _____________________________

Form VCER-1
June 1, 2006

061912 BCC Meeting

49



061912 BCC Meeting

50



061912 BCC Meeting

51



061912 BCC Meeting

52



061912 BCC Meeting

53



061912 BCC Meeting

54



     STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
ROUTE  PROJECT  COUNTY OF  
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

-AND- 

 RIGHT OF WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR NON-UTILITY ENCROACHMENTS ON 
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY HIGHWAYS 

   
   

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the     day of    , 20     , by and between the Department 
of Transportation, party of the first part; and   
      party of the second part, 

W I T N E S S E T H 

 THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road designated as 

Route(s)  , located  
      
with the construction and/or erection of:  
 

 WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part to effect this encroachment, and 
the party of the first part in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by statute, is willing to permit the 
encroachment within the limits of the right of way as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants to the party of the second 
part the right and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on attached plan sheet(s), specifications and 
special provisions which are made a part hereof upon the following conditions, to wit: 

 That the said party of the second part binds and obligates himself to install and maintain the encroaching facility in such safe 
and proper condition that it will not interfere with or endanger travel upon said highway, nor obstruct nor interfere with the proper 
maintenance thereof, to reimburse the party of the first part for the cost incurred for any repairs or maintenance to its roadways 
and structures necessary due to the installation and existence of the facilities of the party of the second part, and if at any time 
the party of the first part shall require the removal of or changes in the location of the said facilities, that the said party of the 
second part binds himself, his successors and assigns, to promptly remove or alter the said facilities, in order to conform to the 
said requirement, without any cost to the party of the first part.  
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction and any subsequent maintenance proper signs, signal 
lights, flagmen and other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices for Streets and Highways and Amendments or Supplements thereto.  Information as to the above rules and 
regulations may be obtained from the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all damages 
and claims for damage that may arise by reason of the installation and maintenance of this encroachment. 
 
 It is clearly understood by the party of the second part that the party of the first part will assume no responsibility for any 
damage that may be caused to such facilities, within the highway rights of way limits, in carrying out its construction and 
maintenance operations. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during installation and maintenance to the satisfaction 
of the Division Engineer of the party of the first part.  The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable 
precaution during construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of rivers, streams, lakes, reservoirs, 
other water impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; or pollution of the air.  There shall be compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations of the North Carolina Division of Environmental Management, North Carolina Sedimentation Control 
Commission, and with ordinances and regulations of various counties, municipalities and other official agencies relating to 
pollution prevention and control.  When any installation or maintenance operation disturbs the ground surface and existing 
ground cover, the party of the second part agrees to remove and replace the sod or otherwise reestablish the grass cover to 
meet the satisfaction of the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection of the work considered to be necessary 
by the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the encroaching site, at all times during construction, a copy of 
this agreement showing evidence of approval by the party of the first part.  The party of the first part reserves the right to stop all 
work unless evidence of approval can be shown. 
 
 Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on a completed highway open to traffic; the party of the 
second part agrees to give written notice to the Division Engineer of the party of the first part when all work contained herein has 
been completed.  Unless specifically requested by the party of the first part, written notice of completion of work on highway 
projects under construction will not be required. 
 
 That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party of the second part, the party of the first part 
reserves the right to stop all work until the facility has been brought into compliance or removed from the right of way at no cost 
to the party of the first part. 
 
 That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the work contemplated herein 
is not begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by the party of the first part unless written waiver is secured by the 
party of the second part from the party of the first part. 

061912 BCC Meeting

55



R/W (161A) : Party of the Second Part certifies that this agreement is true and accurate copy of the form 
R/W (161A) incorporating all revisions to date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 
 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

  BY:       
   District Engineer 

ATTEST OR WITNESS:   

             

   

   
  Second Party 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

When the applicant is a corporation or a municipality, this agreement must have the corporate seal and 
be attested by the corporation secretary or by the empowered city official, unless a waiver of corporate 
seal and attestation by the secretary or by the empowered City official is on file in the Raleigh office of 
the Manager of Right of Way.  In the space provided in this agreement for execution, the name of the 
corporation or municipality shall be typed above the name, and title of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
When the applicant is not a corporation, then his signature must be witnessed by one person.  The 
address should be included in this agreement and the names of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
This agreement must be accompanied, in the form of an attachment, by plans or drawings showing the 
following applicable information: 
 
1. All roadways and ramps. 
2. Right of way lines and where applicable, the control of access lines. 
3. Location of the proposed encroachment. 
4. Length and type of encroachment. 
5. Location by highway survey station number.  If station number cannot be obtained, location 

should be shown by distance from some identifiable point, such as a bridge, road, 
intersection, etc.  (To assist in preparation of the encroachment plan, the Department’s 
roadway plans may be seen at the various Highway Division Offices, or at the Raleigh 
office.) 

6. Drainage structures or bridges if affected by encroachment. 
7. Typical section indicating the pavement design and width, and the slopes, widths and 

details for either a curb and gutter or a shoulder and ditch section, whichever is applicable. 
8. Horizontal alignment indicating general curve data, where applicable. 
9. Vertical alignment indicated by percent grade, P.I. station and vertical curve length, where 

applicable. 
10. Amount of material to be removed and/or placed on NCDOT right of way, if applicable. 
11. Cross-sections of all grading operations, indicating slope ratio and reference by station 

where applicable. 
12. All pertinent drainage structures proposed.  Include all hydraulic data, pipe sizes, structure 

details and other related information. 
13. Erosion and sediment control. 
14. Any special provisions or specifications as to the performance of the work or the method of 

construction that may be required by the Department must be shown on a separate sheet 
attached to encroachment agreement provided that such information cannot be shown on 
plans or drawings. 

15. The Department’s Division Engineer should be given notice by the applicant prior to actual 
starting of installation included in this agreement. 

16. Method of handling traffic during construction where applicable. 
17. Scale of plans, north arrow, etc. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

56



     STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
ROUTE       PROJECT       COUNTY OF       

 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

-AND- 

 RIGHT OF WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
CURB AND GUTTER, PAVEMENT WIDENING AND 
STORM DRAINAGE 

        
        

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the     day of    , 20    , by and between the Department 
of Transportation, party of the first part; and        
 party of the second part, 

W I T N E S S E T H 

 THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road designated as 
Route(s)       , located       
      
with the construction and/or erection of:       
      
      

 WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part to effect this encroachment, and the party of 
the first part in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by statute, is willing to permit the encroachment within the limits of the 
right of way as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants to the party of the second part the right 
and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on attached plan sheet(s), specifications and special provisions which are 
made a part hereof upon the following conditions, to wit: 

 That the said party of the second part binds and obligates himself to install the encroaching facility in such safe 
and proper condition that it will not interfere with or endanger travel upon said highway.  
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction proper signs, signal lights, flagmen and 
other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices for Streets and Highways and Amendments or Supplements thereto.  Information as to the above rules and 
regulations may be obtained from the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all 
damages and claims for damage that may arise by reason of the installation and maintenance of this encroachment. 
 
 It is clearly understood by the party of the second part that the party of the first part will assume no responsibility 
for any damage that may be caused to such facilities, within the highway rights of way limits, in carrying out its 
construction. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during construction to the satisfaction of the 
Division Engineer of the party of the first part.  The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable 
precaution during construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of rivers, streams, lakes, 
reservoirs, other water impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; or pollution of the air.  There shall be 
compliance with applicable rules and regulations of the North Carolina Division of Environmental Management, North 
Carolina Sedimentation Control Commission, and with ordinances and regulations of various counties, municipalities 
and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and control.  When any construction operation disturbs the 
ground surface and existing ground cover, the party of the second part agrees to remove and replace the sod or 
otherwise reestablish the grass cover to meet the satisfaction of the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection of the work considered to be 
necessary by the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the encroaching site, at all times during construction, 
a copy of this agreement showing evidence of approval by the party of the first part.  The party of the first part 
reserves the right to stop all work unless evidence of approval can be shown. 
 
 Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on a completed highway open to traffic; the 
party of the second part agrees to give written notice to the Division Engineer of the party of the first part when all 
work contained herein has been completed.  Unless specifically requested by the party of the first part, written notice 
of completion of work on highway projects under construction will not be required. 
 
 That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party of the second part, the party of 
the first part reserves the right to stop all work until the facility has been brought into compliance or removed from the 
right of way at no cost to the party of the first part. 
 
 That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the work 
contemplated herein is not begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by the party of the first part unless 
written waiver is secured by the party of the second part from the party of the first part. 

R/W (161B) : Party of the Second Part certifies that this agreement is true and accurate copy of the form 
R/W (161B) incorporating all revisions to date. 

061912 BCC Meeting

57



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 
 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

  BY:       
   District Engineer 

ATTEST OR WITNESS:   

             

             
  Second Party 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

When the applicant is a corporation or a municipality, this agreement must have the corporate seal and 
be attested by the corporation secretary or by the empowered city official, unless a waiver of corporate 
seal and attestation by the secretary or by the empowered City official is on file in the Raleigh office of 
the Manager of Right of Way.  In the space provided in this agreement for execution, the name of the 
corporation or municipality shall be typed above the name, and title of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
When the applicant is not a corporation, then his signature must be witnessed by one person.  The 
address should be included in this agreement and the names of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
This agreement must be accompanied, in the form of an attachment, by plans or drawings showing the 
following applicable information: 
 
1. All roadways and ramps. 
2. Right of way lines and where applicable, the control of access lines. 
3. Location of the proposed encroachment. 
4. Length and type of encroachment. 
5. Location by highway survey station number.  If station number cannot be obtained, location 

should be shown by distance from some identifiable point, such as a bridge, road, 
intersection, etc.  (To assist in preparation of the encroachment plan, the Department’s 
roadway plans may be seen at the various Highway Division Offices, or at the Raleigh 
office.) 

6. Drainage structures or bridges if affected by encroachment. 
7. Typical section indicating the pavement design and width, and the slopes, widths and 

details for either a curb and gutter or a shoulder and ditch section, whichever is applicable. 
8. Horizontal alignment indicating general curve data, where applicable. 
9. Vertical alignment indicated by percent grade, P.I. station and vertical curve length, where 

applicable. 
10. Amount of material to be removed and/or placed on NCDOT right of way, if applicable. 
11. Cross-sections of all grading operations, indicating slope ratio and reference by station 

where applicable. 
12. All pertinent drainage structures proposed.  Include all hydraulic data, pipe sizes, structure 

details and other related information. 
13. Erosion and sediment control. 
14. Any special provisions or specifications as to the performance of the work or the method of 

construction that may be required by the Department must be shown on a separate sheet 
attached to encroachment agreement provided that such information cannot be shown on 
plans or drawings. 

15. The Department’s Division Engineer should be given notice by the applicant prior to actual 
starting of installation included in this agreement. 

16. Method of handling traffic during construction where applicable. 
17. Scale of plans, north arrow, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

58



R4.3'

18' 9'
5'

9'

9'

6'

9'

10'

20'

R26'

17.7'

R55.7'

31.0'

29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

BEFORE YOU DIG

Contact N.C. One-Call Center

(800) 632-4949 or 811

061912 BCC Meeting

59



29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

061912 BCC Meeting

60



29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

061912 BCC Meeting

61



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

62



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY (ARL) INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REVISIONS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
On February 7, 2012, the Board adopted a revised interlocal agreement with the Appalachian 
Regional Library.  Wilkes and Ashe Counties requested further changes after Watauga County 
had adopted the agreement.  The County Manager and County Attorney believe these are minor 
changes; however, in the spirit of cooperation and consistency for all agreements to be the same, 
staff would recommend approval. 
 
Both Wilkes and Ashe County have adopted the newer version and Board action is requested to 
adopt the new agreement.   
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

63



COUNTIES OF ASHE, WATAUGA, AND WILKES, NORTH CAROLINA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

FOR THE APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM 

 
THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE APPALACHIAN REGIONAL 

LIBRARY SYSTEM (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of that 
date set forth hereinbelow, by and between the COUNTY OF ASHE, a body politic, party of the 
first part; the COUNTY OF WATAUGA, a body politic, party of the second part; and the 
COUNTY OF WILKES, a body politic, party of the third part; 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the mission of the Appalachian Regional Library (ARL) is to be an integral 
part of the lives of the people in the three counties by promoting the power of knowledge, the joy 
of reading, and the spirit of imagination; supporting and encouraging life-long learning; and 
contributing significantly to the sense of community and the economic well-being of Ashe, 
Wilkes, and Watauga Counties; 
 

WHEREAS, recognizing the diverse communities served and the specific individual 
needs of their residents, three governments and their three libraries collaboratively are committed 
to the education, economic development, and quality-of-life contributions that libraries uniquely 
are able to provide and; 
 

WHEREAS, this collaboration provides for the most effective and efficient use of local 
resources for the benefit of their residents and; 

WHEREAS, this collaboration provides opportunities for service and resource 
allocations otherwise beyond the financial and service capacities of the individual governments 
and libraries; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, having previously entered into an agreement in 
1979 for the purposes set forth herein, and desiring to renew their commitment for the 
organization of the Appalachian Regional Library upon the terms set forth below, do hereby 
agree as follows: 

SECTION I. Governments Involved 
 

The local governments constituting the parties to this Agreement, which are hereinafter referred 
to as the member counties, are: 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

64



A. Ashe County 
B. Watauga County 
C. Wilkes County 

 
SECTION II. Purpose Statement 

 
The purpose of this Agreement is to perpetuate excellent library and information services to the 
residents of the areas included within the jurisdiction of the member counties in compliance with 
NCGS §153A-270 and Chapter 160A, Article 20, Part 1. 
 
SECTION III. Board of Trustees 
 

A. The Appalachian Regional Library Board (ARLB) shall be the governing body of the 
ARL. 

 
B. Membership 

 
1. The membership of the ARLB shall consist of twelve (12) members, four (4) 

each to be appointed by the Boards of County Commissioners of Ashe 
County, Watauga County, and Wilkes County upon the approval of this 
Agreement. 

 
2. Following initial appointments by the Boards of County Commissioners under 

paragraph 1 above, appointments thereafter shall be in August of each year 
with an effective date to be the annual meeting of the ARLB in September.   

 
3. In the initial appointments under paragraph 1 above, terms of one (1) to four 

(4) years will be used to achieve a staggering of terms.  Terms will be 
considered staggered when each year the terms of only three (3) members of 
the twelve (12) member board expire, one member from each of the member 
counties.  

 
4. Once staggering of terms has been achieved, each member county will appoint 

members for four (4) year terms.  Subject to paragraph 5 below, no individual 
will be appointed to more than two (2) consecutive terms. 

 
5. In case of a vacancy on the ARLB, the Board of County Commissioners of the 

member county for which the vacancy occurs shall appoint a new member to 
serve the remainder of the unexpired term.  ARLB members who are 
appointed to fill unexpired terms are eligible to be appointed for one (1) 

061912 BCC Meeting

65



additional full term; provided, that if the new member is fulfilling an 
unexpired term for less than 24 months, that member is eligible to serve two 
(2) consecutive full terms.  All ARLB members shall serve until their 
successors have been appointed. 

 
C. Powers and Duties delegated to the ARLB by the Counties of Ashe, Watauga, and  

Wilkes 
 

1. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to adopt such bylaws, rules, and 
regulations for its own guidance and for the government of the library as may 
be necessary and in conformity with law. 

 
2. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to adopt policies for the regional 

library system’s administration and operation. 
 

3. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to select, appoint, remove, determine 
salary and other terms of employment of a regional library director (the ARL 
Director), and delegate to that person executive powers.  The ARL Director 
shall: 

 
a. Have a valid North Carolina Public Librarian Certificate; and 

 
b. Be the chief executive and administrative officer of the ARL System 

and function in accordance with the approved policies and by-laws of 
the ARLB. 
 

4. The ARLB shall develop and approve an annual budget which shall: 
 

a. Be administered under the provisions of NCGS Chapter 159 and be 
subject to an independent audit in that ARL is a local governmental 
agency pursuant to NCGS§159-7(10) with all state funds administered 
by the regional library and expended throughout the region as 
described in 07 NCAC 02I.0202. 

 
b. Include the separate budgets of each member county library, with the 

understanding that funds appropriated by each separate member 
county will be spent for that county; it will include an agreed upon 
amount paid by each member county for the materials, salaries, and 
operating expenses which shall be sent to the ARL Finance Officer in 

061912 BCC Meeting

66



monthly or quarterly payments as negotiated by the ARL Finance 
Officer and the member county; and  

 
c. Include a specified amount of funding for each library’s operating 

costs with gifts, special memorials, endowment and trust income, and 
appropriations for capital outlay earmarked for the designated purpose.   

 
5. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to appoint a regional library 

finance officer (the ARL Finance Officer) who shall: 
 

a. Ensure expenditure of funds consistent with the budget adopted by the 
ARLB; 

 
b. Report directly to the ARL Director and the ARLB; and 
 
c. Attend and report at all meetings of the ARLB. 

 
6. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to assure compliance with all 

applicable State and Federal laws and eligibility for the receipt of State and 
Federal funds. 

 
7. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to make recommendations to the 

member counties concerning the construction and improvement of the 
physical facilities of the libraries within the region; however, construction and 
maintenance of the physical facilities within each member county shall be the 
responsibility of that county unless the ARLB negotiates and the member 
counties approve a collaborative effort. 

 
8. The ARLB shall make regular reports related to services and operations to the 

governing body of each member county as conveyed by approved reports of 
the ARL Director. 

 
9. The ARLB shall obtain an annual independent audit of ARL accounts 

consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, and submit a copy of 
the audit to the State Library of North Carolina and to the finance officer of 
each member county. 

 
10. The ARLB, staff, employees, or other agents shall not have the authority to 

incur any debt, obligation, liability, or other expense, not otherwise provided 
for in its existing appropriations, which would purport to place any liability 

061912 BCC Meeting

67



for such debt upon the member counties without an express vote of approval 
from each member county’s Boards of Commissioners approving such 
indebtedness. 

 
SECTION IV. Terms of Property Ownership 
 
A major benefit of regional cooperation is that scarce resources may be shared among the 
various county residents without wasteful duplication; however, certain ownership restrictions 
shall apply: 

 
A. All buildings, grounds, facilities, furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, 

resources, or other library assets owned or purchased by or for each member county 
or member county library shall be and remain the property of that county. 

 
B.  All buildings, grounds, facilities, furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, 

resources, or other library assets owned or purchased jointly by two or more member 
counties or member county libraries and not otherwise provided for under subsection 
A above shall be and remain the joint property of said counties, or, in the case of real 
property, shall be owned by said counties as tenants in common.  The percentage 
ownership or interest of each county under this subsection B shall be as they may 
agree upon at the time of purchase or assumption of ownership. 

 
C.  All furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, resources or other library 

assets directly paid for or purchased with Regional or State funds and not owned or 
purchased by one or more of the member counties under subsection A or subsection B 
above shall be and remain the property of ARL.  No real property shall be owned by 
or titled in the name of ARL, but shall instead be governed by the provisions of either 
subsection A or subsection B above. 

 
SECTION V. Insurance Coverage and Indemnification 
 

A. Insurance Coverage 
 

1. Each member county shall maintain insurance coverage for the building(s) 
and grounds and other library facilities located within that county. 

 
2. ARL shall maintain insurance coverage for the contents of the buildings, the 

ARL Regional Office, and vehicles used to provide service. 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

68



B.    Indemnification 
 

1. ARL shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each person who may 
serve or who has served at any time as an officer, director, board member, or 
employee against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, 
counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement 
payments, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon such person in connection 
with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding in which 
he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such 
capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such 
person with respect to any matter as to which he or she shall have been finally 
adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted in good faith or in the 
reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Appalachian 
Regional Library System; and further provided that any compromise or 
settlement payment shall be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of 
directors who are not at that time parties to the proceeding. 

 
SECTION VI. Provisions for Amendment and Dispute Resolution 
 

A. This Agreement may be amended by instrument duly approved and executed by all of 
the member counties, subject to the requirements of this Section VI. 

 
B. Recommendations for amendments to this Agreement may be made by the ARLB or 

by any member county.  Such recommendations shall be forwarded to the governing 
body of each member county in writing with a minimum thirty (30) day period for 
consideration provided.  At any regular meeting of the governing body of each 
member county after expiration of said thirty(30) day period, the proposed 
amendments may be voted on by the governing body. 

 
C. Disagreements related to this Agreement shall be resolved first by a committee of 

representatives appointed by the governing body of each member county, with the 
assistance of their respective legal counsel if necessary.  Should resolution by this 
method be unsuccessful, the governing bodies of the member counties may authorize 
resolution by such means as they may deem appropriate. 

 
SECTION VII. Provisions for Withdrawal and Dissolution 

A. A member county proposing to withdraw from the ARL System shall give written 
notice on or before July 1 to the ARLB, the other member counties, and the State 
Library of North Carolina. The withdrawal shall be effective June 30 of the following 
calendar year. 

061912 BCC Meeting

69



 
B. The withdrawing member county shall establish eligibility for grants to public 

libraries according to 07 NCAC 02I.0201 on or before the effective date of 
withdrawal. 

C. Should the withdrawing member county, following its written notice of withdrawal 
under subsection A above and prior to the effective date thereof, decide to rescind 
said notice, it shall do so by written notice to the other member counties and the State 
Library of North Carolina, whereupon it shall remain a part of the ARL System under 
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
D. Should that member fully withdraw, the Terms of Property Ownership as stated in  

Section IV shall apply. 
 
E. Unless the remaining member counties shall agree otherwise as set forth below, upon 

the withdrawal of only one member county this Agreement shall continue in full force 
and effect as between the remaining two member counties and said remaining 
counties shall remain a part of the ARL System. 

 
F. The ARL System shall be dissolved if at least two of the member counties withdraw 

in accordance with the procedures stated above, or if all of the member counties then 
comprising the ARL System should so agree by instrument duly approved and 
executed by their respective governing boards, or in any event upon expiration of the 
term of this Agreement as set forth in Section IX below.  Any written instrument of 
dissolution entered into by the member counties may, but shall not be required to, 
include provisions for the resolution of outstanding debts and distribution of 
properties and resources, including appointment of a committee to accomplish the 
same as provided for in subsection H below.   

 
G. Upon dissolution, the disposition of all buildings, grounds, facilities, furniture, 

equipment, books, materials, technology, resources, and other library assets 
(collectively referred to for purposes of this subsection G as “property”) shall be 
governed by the following provisions:   

 
1. Property owned or purchased by or for a member county or member county 

library pursuant to Section IV. A. above shall remain the property of that county.   
 
2. Property owned or purchased jointly by two or more member counties or member 

county libraries pursuant to Section IV. B. above shall be divided among the 
member counties according to the percentage ownership or interest of each, or, 
should said member counties so agree, shall remain jointly owned.   

061912 BCC Meeting

70



 
3. Property directly paid for or purchased with Regional or State funds pursuant to 

Section IV. C. above and falling under the provisions thereof shall be divided 
equally between the member counties or, if required by law, shall revert to the 
State or such other entity as said law may require.   

 
H. The resolution of outstanding debts and the distribution of properties and resources 

jointly owned may be accomplished by a committee composed of representatives 
from each governmental unit, the current ARL Director, and a representative from the 
State Library of North Carolina. 

 
I. After all outstanding debts are resolved, any remaining funds from the member 

counties shall be returned to them and the distribution of any remaining State or 
Federal funds shall be determined by the State Library.   

 
SECTION VIII. Effective Date 

 
This Agreement, in order to become effective, shall require the approval of the governing bodies 
of the member counties and shall become effective as of the date on which all said approvals are 
complete. 

 
SECTION IX. Term and Termination:  Review 

 
A. This Agreement shall, following the effective date hereof, continue to be in effect for 

a period of ten (10) years unless sooner terminated as set forth in Section VII above.  
The member counties may, either by amendment to this Agreement pursuant to 
Section VI above or by approval of a new interlocal agreement, extend the term 
hereof for such period as they may mutually agree upon. 

 
B. Upon the expiration of the term of this Agreement under subsection A above, the 

member counties shall immediately proceed with dissolution under Section VII and, 
upon completion of the same, this Agreement shall be considered terminated. 
 

C. This Agreement may be reviewed at any time by any of the member counties or the 
ARLB and, if modifications are deemed reasonable and necessary, amendments may 
be made according to the procedures stated above. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the principal official 

of the governing body of each party hereto, pursuant to authority of each respective governing 
body. 

061912 BCC Meeting

71



ASHE COUNTY: 

Attest: 

 
_______________________________ By:_____________________________________ 
Ann Clark, Clerk to the Board        Judy Porter Poe, Chair 
            Ashe County Board of Commissioners 
 
      Date:_____________________ 
 
 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 Ashe County 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act, up to the annual amount of the appropriation by Ashe County for ARL. 
 
By:______________________________________ 
      Sandra Long, Finance Director, Ashe County 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY: 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________     By:_____________________________________ 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board            Nathan A. Miller, Chair 
                Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
      Date:______________________ 
 
       

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 Watauga County 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act, up to the annual amount of the appropriation by Watauga County for 
ARL. 
 
By:______________________________________ 
     Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, Watauga County 

061912 BCC Meeting

72



 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

  WILKES  COUNTY: 

Attest: 

 
___________________________________   By:______________________________________ 
Judy Snyder, Clerk to the Board         Gary D. Blevins, Chair 
             Wilkes County Board of Commissioners  
 
        Date:_______________________ 

       

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 Wilkes County 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act, up to the annual amount of the appropriation by Wilkes County for ARL. 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 
     Jerry Shepherd, Finance Director, Wilkes County 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

73



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

74



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

A.  Request for Acceptance of Civil Penalty Settlement 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will request the Board approve the civil settlement of $2,100 from the owner of 
Mountain Ridge apartments.  The civil penalties were issued for six violations associated with 
the property.   
 
Board action is required to accept the $2,100 as settlement for the civil penalties associated with 
the Mountain Ridge apartments.   
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

75



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, June 11, 2012 3:46 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: settlement of civil penalty

Deron, 
I am in receipt of a check for $2100.00 from the owner of Mountain Ridge apartments in settlement of civil penalties as 
discussed by the Commissioners in closed session of the June 5, 2012 meeting. I request the Commissioners to officially approve 
at the June 19, 2012 meeting the settlement as discussed. Thank you. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

76



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

B. Proposed Amendment to High Country Council of Governments Agreement for the 
Provision of Grant Management Assistance for the 2009 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will request the Board adopt an amendment to the County’s existing administrative 
contract for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.  The County received 
“program income” in the amount of $19,335.36 due to the sale of a house which had been 
previously rehabilitated by the County using CDBG funds.  The repayment was a condition of 
the deed of trust placed upon the house as required by the CDBG regulations.  
 
The funds will be spent on the County’s only open CDBG project which is a Scattered Site 
Housing project for “emergency repairs” to houses that were on a waiting list. The High Country 
Council of Governments administered the program and will expend the additional program 
income.  
 
All administrative funds budgeted for the Scattered Site Housing project have been disbursed; 
therefore Mr. Furman is recommending setting aside up to 10% of the program income (not to 
exceed $1,933.00) for administration of those funds by the High Country Council of 
Governments.  The remaining provisions of the agreement shall remain in effect. 
 
Board action is required to approve the amendment authorizing High Country Council of 
Governments to administer the additional program income for an amount not to exceed $1,933.  
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

77



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, June 11, 2012 4:23 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: CDBG Scattered Site Housing project
Attachments: Contract amendment - Watauga 2009 SSH.doc

Deron, 
Watauga County received Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)“program income” in the amount of $19,335.36 due to 
the sale of a house which had been previously rehabilitated by the County using CDBG funds. This repayment was a condition of 
the deed of trust placed upon the house as required by the CDBG regulations. CDBG regulations also require that program 
income be spent on CDBG eligible activities undertaken as part of an open CDBG grant. The County’s only open grant is the 
current Scattered Site Housing project, which is complete, but is not yet closed‐out. In anticipation of expending the program 
income, we received bids to make “emergency repairs” to houses which were on our waiting list, and are ready to make those 
repairs. The High Country Council of Governments has administered the program for us, and will continue to do so to expend the 
program income. All of the administrative funds budgeted in the SSH program have been disbursed, so I propose to set aside up 
to 10% of the program income (not to exceed $1933.00) for administration of those funds by the COG. Accordingly a proposed 
amendment to the existing administrative contract is attached. Commissioners approval is requested. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

78



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

AND WATAUGA COUNTY 
FOR THE PROVISION OF GRANT MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE 
 2009 SCATTERED SITE HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, Watauga County (hereinafter the “Local Government”) and the High Country Council of 
Governments (hereinafter called the “Planning Agency”) entered into a contract (the “Agreement”) on 
December 7, 2009 for grant management services pertaining to the Community Development Block Grant 
(“CDBG”) 2009 Scattered Site Housing Rehabilitation Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Local Government has received program income in the amount of $19,335.36 from the 
sale of a home assisted in a prior Scattered Site project; 
  
 WHEREAS, the Local Government must expend this program income on CDBG approved activities 
during an open CDBG project; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Local Government has requested the Planning Agency to provide grant management 
assistance for the continuation of the project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to include compensation for the grant 
management assistance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree as follows: 
 
 1) The Local Government will pay the Planning Agency an amount for total grant administration 

not to exceed $1,933.00 (one thousand nine hundred thirty-three dollars) for the satisfactory 
performance of all services related to the administration of the project. It is expressly understood that the 
total compensation shall not exceed the maximum sum specified without prior approval of both 
agencies. 

 
2) The remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Planning Agency and the Local Government have executed this 
Amendment the ________ day of _______________, 20________. 
 
 
For the Local Government    For the Planning Agency 
Watauga County      High Country Council of Governments 
 
 
By: ________________________  By: ___________________________ 
 Chairman      Executive Director 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
Attest       Attest 
 
 
[Seal] 

061912 BCC Meeting

79



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

80



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

C. Proposed Contract for Brookshire Wetlands Project 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Attached is a proposed contract with Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC (BRDG) for 
development of a wetlands mitigation bank on the County’s Brookshire property.  The proposed 
contract would replace a similar one approved in February. The primary reason for a new 
contract is that the County was awarded a $65,000 grant from NC Division of Water Resources 
to construct an unpaved greenway on the property.  The grant requires a $65,000 match, which 
the County planned to provide in-kind by utilizing Sanitation Department personnel and 
equipment to construct the greenway.  Both the prior and proposed contracts with BRDG provide 
that BRDG will build the greenway in conjunction with the grading needed to construct the 
wetlands.  
 
The new contract would provide for a paved greenway, constructed by BRDG. The County 
would use the grant funds for materials and/or paving, and BRDG’s work would be the required 
grant match.  In order for this to work, two (2) things must occur: 1) the Army Corps of 
Engineers must approve the wetlands plan, and 2) existing permits from the Town of Boone must 
be revised/reissued to reflect changes in the greenway location needed to accommodate the 
wetlands construction.  There could be a cost to the County for this if the changed location will 
not yield a “no rise” (floodway) certification.  In this case, the County would have to seek a flood 
map revision from FEMA, which could cost up to $10,000.  The expense would provide the 
County with a paved greenway and a wetlands area for $10,000.  Should the Corps of Engineers 
not approve option 1, BRDG will exercise its right to cancel the contract, and the County will 
then need to build the unpaved greenway using the grant funds and County in-kind match as 
originally planned.  
 
The County Attorney has reviewed the contract and Board action is requested to approve the new 
contract as presented. 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

81



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Tuesday, June 12, 2012 4:41 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: wetland mitigation bank at Brookshire property
Attachments: Watauga County - Contract with Blue Ridge Development Group 6-9-12.docx

Deron, 
Attached is a proposed contract with Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC (BRDG) for development of a wetlands mitigation 
bank on the County’s Brookshire property. This proposed contract would replace a similar one approved in February. The 
primary reason for a new contract is that the County was awarded a $65,000 grant from NC Division of Water Resources to 
construct an unpaved greenway on the property. The grant requires a $65,000 match, which we planned to provide in‐kind by 
utilizing Sanitation Department personnel and equipment to construct the greenway. Both the prior and proposed contracts 
with BRDG provide that BRDG will build the greenway in conjunction with the grading needed to construct the wetlands. The 
new contract would provide for a paved greenway, constructed by BRDG. The County would use the grant funds for materials 
and/or paving, and BRDG’s work would be the required grant match. In order for this to work, two (2) things must occur: 1) the 
Army Corps of Engineers must approve the wetlands plan, and 2) existing permits from the Town of Boone must be 
revised/reissued to reflect changes in the greenway location needed to accommodate the wetlands construction. There could be 
a cost to the County for this if the changed location will not yield a “no rise” (floodway) certification. If that is the case, we will 
have to seek a flood map revision from FEMA, which could cost up to $10,000. My view is that such an expense is well worth it, 
as we will end up with a paved greenway and a wetlands area for $10,000. If #1, Corps of Engineers approval does not occur, 
BRDG will exercise its right to cancel the contract, and the County will then need to build the unpaved greenway using the grant 
funds and County in‐kind match as originally planned. I request time for this on the June 19, 2012 Commissioners meeting 
agenda. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

82



This instrument drawn by: Eggers, Eggers, Eggers and Eggers, PLLC, 
Attorneys at Law, Boone, North Carolina 28607 

 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the _____ day of 

___________________, 2012, by and between Blue Ridge Development Group, 

LLC, (hereinafter referred to as “BRDG”), and Watauga County (hereinafter “the 

County”) is for the purpose of allowing BRDG to investigate and perform the 

establishment of a stream and wetland mitigation bank on property owned by 

Watauga County as more specifically set forth herein; 

 WHEREAS, Watauga County is a body politic and corporate of the State 

of North Carolina duly authorized to enter into contracts related to lands 

owned by Watauga County for the benefit of its citizens, protection of the 

natural environment, economic development, and for promoting the quality of 

life of the citizens of Watauga County; and 

 WHEREAS, BRDG is a land development firm with offices in Wilkesboro 

and West Jefferson, North Carolina; and 

 WHEREAS, Watauga County is the owner of certain tracts described 

below located on Brookshire Road in Watauga County, North Carolina; and

 WHEREAS, BRDG is desirous of investigating whether certain areas of 

those tracts would be conducive to providing mitigation banks upon the 

property for the purpose of addressing the impact requirements of Section 10 of 

the Clear Water Act which may result from development of a tract of 

commercial property located on Old US 421 as identified in Book of Records 

1577 at Page 113, Watauga County Registry; and 

061912 BCC Meeting

83



 

 

 WHEREAS, in the event the results of this due diligence period are 

successful, the parties anticipate that they will review the requirements of a 

final contract and negotiate a future contract wherein BRDG would be 

responsible for design, permitting, and construction of an approximately eight 

foot wide and 3000 linear foot greenway trail upon the site of the County; 

 NOW THEREFORE, based upon the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 1.  BRDG shall be granted a due diligence period of up to and including 

November 1, 2012 to enter the property of Watauga County located on 

Brookshire Road as identified in Book of Records 729 at Page 445; Book of 

Records 1134 at Page 15; and Book of Records 1134 at Page 4, Watauga 

County Registry, and having respective tax identification numbers of 2921-00-

6676-000, 2911-92-5136-000, and 2921-02-9838-000 for the purpose of 

investigating whether it is feasible to construct and establish compensatory 

stream and wetlands mitigation upon portions of the above described property.   

 2.  During the term of this due diligence period, BRDG may conduct a 

bank prospectus, financial proforma, surveys, engineering, mitigation bank 

instruments, permitting, and public hearings associated with the regulatory, 

physical, and cultural/historic aspects of the property.  All work product 

created shall be the property of BRDG.  However, BRDG acknowledges that any 

information provided to Watauga County may be subject to disclosure 

pursuant the North Carolina public records laws. 

 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

84



 

 

 3.  BRDG shall use the due diligence period to obtain an opinion from 

the United States Army Corps of Engineers to determine whether the proposed 

project may be completed.  In the event the United States Army Corps of 

Engineers states to BRDG, in writing by November 1, 2012, that the project is 

not approved, BRDG shall notify the County by this date of that decision and 

this contract shall become void.  If such writing is not delivered, or BRDG 

intends to proceed with the project, it shall do so in accordance with the terms 

of this contract and the grant requirements related to the greenway expansion 

upon the property.   

 4.  BRDG shall file the necessary paperwork with the Town of Boone to 

revise the permit application in this matter, and shall take all necessary steps 

to complete the permitting process.  For purposes of this permit, BRDG shall 

act as the County’s representative in all matters related to the permit 

application and approval. 

 5.  In the event BRDG does not exercise its right to cancel this contract 

as set forth herein, it shall start construction on the project by April 16, 2013 

and shall complete construction of the greeway no later than June 30, 2013. 

 6.  It is understood and agreed by the parties that Watauga County is the 

recipient of a grant for $65,000 for the construction of a greenway on this 

property.  For this grant amount, BRDG shall construct this greenway in 

accordance with the grant requirements and shall ensure paving of the 

greenway to the satisfaction of the County, as well as ensuring an adequate 

foundation for the greenway to reasonably weather the climate and conditions 

of Watauga County.   

061912 BCC Meeting

85



 

 7.  BRDG shall act as the County’s agent and representative in regards to 

the grant administration and compliance required by the State of North 

Carolina.  In addition to acting as the County’s agent, BRDG shall provide all 

funds and actions necessary to comply with the matching funds required in the 

award of the grant without any further financial consideration from the County 

except as expressly set forth herein. 

 8.  BRDG shall use its best efforts to complete the project in such a 

manner that will result in a ‘no-rise’ certification from the State and Federal 

government so as to avoid the need for a flood map revision to this project.  As 

part of this agreement, BRDG shall pay for and complete all engineering related 

to these requirements. 

 9.  Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as an agreement to 

encumber the real property with any restrictions or to allow the actual 

construction of a stream and wetland mitigation project upon the property 

described above.  In the event BRDG determines that it wishes to pursue the 

establishment of a stream and wetland mitigation bank upon this property, the 

County agrees to allow BRDG to present its proposal for action to the Watauga 

County Board of Commissioners for review and consideration as to full extent 

of this wetland area and whether the County wishes to engage in a contractual 

arrangement for compliance with a governmental stream and wetland 

mitigation project. 

 10.  BRDG shall bear all costs and expenses associated with this 

agreement, except for fees assessed by the State of North Carolina resulting 

from any change in the flood map elevations.  BRDG does not rely upon any  

061912 BCC Meeting

86



 

 

representations made by the County or any of its agents or officials as to the 

condition or status of the project.  BRDG shall use its own best judgment in 

determining whether this site is suitable for their proposed project. 

 11.  It is the responsibility of BRDG to complete this project as scheduled 

and time is of the essence in the performance of this agreement. 

 12.  This Contract is entered into in Watauga County, North Carolina, 

and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  The parties hereby agree that Watauga County, North Carolina is an 

appropriate venue for the resolution of any disputes arising as a result of this 

contract.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract which cannot be 

resolved informally between the parties, the parties agree to conduct pre-

litigation mediation, consistent with the rules of Mediated Settlement 

Conferences for the Superior Court of North Carolina, prior to the filing of any 

suit arising out of this Contract. 

 13.  BRDG will provide and maintain, at BRDG=s expense, such 

insurance as will protect BRDG and Watauga County from claims under the 

Workman=s Compensation Act and such comprehensive general liability 

insurance as will protect Watauga County and BRDG from all claims for bodily 

injury, death, or property damage which may arise from the performance of 

BRDG or by BRDG’s employees during the course of BRDG’s work upon the 

project in amounts of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for general 

liability insurance per occurrence and workers compensation coverage of at 

least one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per occurrence.  BRDG shall 

061912 BCC Meeting

87



list Watauga County as an additional insured for the duration of this work.  

Copies of these policies shall be provided the County Manager of Watauga 

County. 

 14.  At all times relevant to this contract, BRDG shall maintain all 

necessary and relevant licensing it possesses at the time of execution of this 

contract. 

 15.  BRDG agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Watauga County of 

any and all liability arising from any breach of contract or any other action 

related to, or incidental to, the performance of this contract. 

 16.  Watauga County shall not be responsible for incidental or 

consequential damages as a result of any breach of this contract, or for any 

Acts of God, fire, riot, war, civil unrest, or impossibility beyond the control of 

the County. 

 17.  In the event notices are to be sent to either party under this 

agreement, such notices will be sent to the following addresses by regular mail, 

with adequate postage attached thereto: 

Watauga County   Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC 
Attn:  Deron Geouque  Attn:  Derek Goddard 
814 West King Street  1305 South Collegiate Avenue 
Boone, NC  28604   Wilkesboro, NC  28697 

 
 18.  Watauga County and BRDG each bind themselves, their successors, 

legal representatives and assigns to the other party to this agreement and to 

the successors, legal representatives and assigns of such other party in respect 

to all covenants of this agreement.  Neither Watauga County nor BRDG shall 

assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this agreement without the written 

consent of the other. 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

88



 

 

 19.  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement, 

between Watauga County and BRDG and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This agreement may be 

amended only by written contract.  To the extent anything contained in any 

other discussions or specifications conflicts with any provision of this contract, 

the terms of this contract shall control. 

 20.  If any provision of this contract is unenforceable, invalid, or illegal, 

the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect. 

 21.  In the event that any incorporated documents conflict with the terms 

and conditions of this contract, the terms and conditions set forth in this 

document shall control. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Watauga County and Blue Ridge 

Development Group, LLC have executed this Agreement, the day and year first 

above written. 

 
Watauga County Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC 
 
 
By:___________________________ By:________________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman  Derek Goddard   
      Member/Manager 
 
ATTEST:    
 
 
By:___________________________  
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

061912 BCC Meeting

89



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

90



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  

A. Proposed Changes to Fire District Boundaries 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comments on consideration of extending 
the Boone Fire Protection Service District and transfers of property from the Stewart Simmons 
Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire District, property from Meat Camp Fire District to Deep Gap 
Fire District, and property from Deep Gap Fire District to Meat Camp Fire District.  Maps have 
been included detailing the changes. 
 
The changes to Meat Camp and Deep Gap Fire Districts assume the Board will approve Meat 
Camp’s request to increase their tax rate to $0.05.  
 
Board action is requested to approve the enclosed resolution authorizing the extension of the 
Boone Fire Protection Service District and the transfers of property within the referenced Fire 
Districts.   
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

91



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, June 11, 2012 3:41 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Information for Fire District boundary changes 6-19-12 hearing
Attachments: Stewart_Simmons_to_Boone_Fire.pdf; Stewart_Simmons_to_Deep_Gap.pdf; Meat Camp to Deep 

Gap.bmp; Deep Gap to Meat Camp.bmp; Report on Extension of Boundaries of Service District 
for Fire Protection 2012.docx; Mailing certification.pdf

Deron, 
Attached are maps and other relevant information for the four (4) proposed fire district boundary changes. I also have in my 
possession the requests for these changes as required by NCGS 153A‐303 and NCGS 69‐25.11. The Commissioners are requested 
to make the changes effective for fiscal year 2012‐13. Meat Camp/Deep Gap changes assume that the requested $.05 tax rate 
requested for Meat Camp will be approved. Thank you. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

92



PIN: 2869-26-1198-000
Name: MORETZ, EDDIE T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-28-0129-000
Name: CARROLL, STERLING

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-28-2791-000
Name: RIEGER, MICHAEL F,STULL, GARY AND PATRICIA

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-35-5563-000
Name: ROSS, GARY

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-17-7819-000
Name: MORETZ, EDDIE T,MORETZ, JUDY P

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-18-7276-000
Name: SHELLEY, LINDA R.

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-26-8603-000
Name: TAYLOR, JAMES ROY,TAYLOR, SUSAN

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-19-5411-000
Name: SCHLIEDER, RODRIC A,SCHLIEDER, DEBORAH S

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-29-2999-000
Name: CARROLL, STERLING CLAYTON

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-29-0053-000
Name: CARROLL, STERLING CLAYTON

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-28-6998-000
Name: CARROLL, STERLING

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-37-3090-000
Name: AUSTIN, MICHAEL KEVIN,AUSTIN, ANGELA JUNE

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-37-0598-000
Name: BAKER, DAVID G,BAKER, CAROL W

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-36-5865-000
Name: AUSTIN, MICHAEL KEVIN,AUSTIN, ANGELA JUNE

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-19-8297-000
Name: SHEAFF, SHANE HAMPTON ,SHEAFF, TIFFANY S

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-29-2433-000
Name: HAINES, DONALD D,HAINES, RUTH

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-37-2167-000
Name: MIKE AUSTIN ENTERPRISES INC

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2869-18-3884-000
Name: JOHNSTON, MITCHELL,JOHNSTON, LAURA B

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-37-1394-000
Name: BAKER, DAVID G,BAKER, CAROL W

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-28-7565-000
Name: MILLER, CURTIS

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-29-0436-000
Name: CARROLL, STERLING AND LOIS

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2951-20-5173-000
Name: MILLER, NATHAN ARTHUR

Tax District: F05 PIN: 2950-29-4714-000
Name: HAINES, DONALD D,HAINES, RUTH

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2930-76-6074-000
Name: BROWN, ALVIN BLAKE,BROWN, ANN FULP

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-54-6327-000
Name: POTTER, WAYNE D AND RETA

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2950-54-7438-000
Name: POTTER, WAYNE D AND RETA

Tax District: F05

ELK CREEK RD

WILDCAT RD

OLD 421 S

BLUE RIDGE PKWY

ELK LN

JAKES MOUNTAIN RD

BE
N 

MI
LL

ER
 R

D

SMITH RD

LITTLE LAUREL RD

US HWY 421 S

RHYMER BRANCH RD

BRIGHTWOOD TR N

JAMES HAYES RD

SKYVIEW ST

SERENITY PL

PARKCREST DR

MEMORY LN

BUCKSKIN HOLW WES RANDALL R
D

STONEY FORK RD

LAWRENCE GREENE RD

DON HAYES RD

MT PARON RD

STEWART SIMMONS RD

DANIEL DR

LOTUS HL

HICKORY KNOLL

CLYDE LN

OWL REST LN

FOGGY LN

HILLSIDE TR

CO
RB

ET
T M

CN
EIL

 RD

WI
NE

BA
RG

ER
 R

D

BLUE RIDGE VISTA

TUCKWILLER LN

RAY HAMBY LN

DEER OAKS RD

COWBOY TR

EL
LIE

S T
R

BLUE RIDGE PKWY

.

Stewart Simmons to Deep Gap

Not To Scale

061912 BCC Meeting

93



PIN: 2849-06-2043-000
Name: LITTLE LAUREL DEVELOPERS INC

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2849-04-7464-000
Address: 2500 LAUREL RD

Name: BARRETT, PATRICK J,PALMS, MARGARET A
Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-77-5756-000
Address: 427 WHIPPOORWILL LN

Name: DERRICK, DREW
Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-85-7940-000
Address: 2077 LITTLE LAUREL RD

Name: GRIFFITH, MARK A,GRIFFITH, PATRICIA A
Tax District: F05

PIN: 2849-04-5944-000
Name: EQUITY TRUST CO,.DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF IRA

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-95-4502-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05 PIN: 2839-95-5414-000
Name: BARR, ROBERT R

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2849-04-3737-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-95-8242-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2849-04-2962-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-85-9851-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-95-0791-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-95-6324-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2839-95-2654-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

PIN: 2849-05-0064-000
Name: DOUGLAS M RUDERSDORF REVOCABLE LIVING T

Tax District: F05

LITTLE LAUREL RD

SU
NR

ISE
 VA

LL
EY

 DR

FAWN DR

AURORA

.

Stewart Simmons to Boone Fire

Not To Scale

061912 BCC Meeting

94



061912 BCC Meeting

95



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

96



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  

B. Proposed Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) Grant Application for 
Transportation Services 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on Watauga County's Rural 
Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) application.  County governments are the only eligible 
applicants for ROAP funds.  All counties must submit an annual application to receive these 
funds.  Mr. Mike Norwood, AppalCART Finance Officer, will be present to answer questions. 
 
Board action is requested to authorize the submission of the Rural Operating Assistance Program 
Grant Application. 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

97



061912 BCC Meeting

98



061912 BCC Meeting

99



061912 BCC Meeting

100



061912 BCC Meeting

101



061912 BCC Meeting

102



061912 BCC Meeting

103



061912 BCC Meeting

104



061912 BCC Meeting

105



061912 BCC Meeting

106



061912 BCC Meeting

107



061912 BCC Meeting

108



061912 BCC Meeting

109



061912 BCC Meeting

110



061912 BCC Meeting

111



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

112



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PARKS AND RECREATION PROPOSED APPALCART CONTRACT RENEWAL 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Poulos will present the proposed AppalCART contract for transportation services for FY 
2013.  The rates charged are $1.25 per vehicle mile, an increase of $0.15, and $14.68 per vehicle 
service hour, an increase of $0.20.   
 
Board action is requested for approval. 
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

113



061912 BCC Meeting

114



061912 BCC Meeting

115



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

116



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 

A. Proposed AppalCART Contract Renewal 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Boitnotte, Director of the Project on Aging, will present the proposed AppalCART contract 
for transportation services for FY 2013.  The rates charged are $0.75 per vehicle mile, an 
increase of $0.06 per mile, and $13.29 per vehicle service hour, an increase of $0.20 per hour.   
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

117



   Watauga County Project on Aging 
               132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
Telephone 828-265-8090    Fax 828-264-2060    TDD 1-800-735-2962       Voice 1-800-735-8262 

                                                                
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 
DATE: June 8, 2012 
 
SUBJ: Request for Board of Commissioners’ Consideration – FY 2013 AppalCART Contract 

Renewal  
 
 
Each year, the Project on Aging renews the contract with AppalCART to provide transportation 
services to adults 60 and older in the County.  The contract amounts for FY13 are $13.29 per 
hour, an increase of $.20 per hour, and $.75 per mile, an increase of $.06 per mile.   
 
Funds to cover the contracted amounts are included in the agency’s requested FY 2013 budget.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

118



061912 BCC Meeting

119



061912 BCC Meeting

120



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 

B. FY 2013 Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) Allocation Request 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte will recommend accepting $261,640 in Home and Community Care Block 
Grant (H&CCBG) funds for FY 2013.  The required local match is $28,671 and will be present 
with the adoption of the Project on Aging's FY 2013 budget.  The allocation is as detailed in Ms. 
Boitnotte's memo.   
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

121



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 
DATE: June 8, 2012 
 
SUBJ: Request for Board of County Commissioners’ Consideration: Allocation of FY2013 

Home and Community Care Block Grant funds 
 
 
The Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) allocation for FY2013 has not yet been 
received from the Division of Aging and Adult Services.  Counties were advised to use the 
current FY 2012 allocation in preparing our HCCBG budgets for FY2013.  Based on FY2012 
figures, Watauga County is projected to receive $261,640, which requires $28,671 in local 
match.  The Advisory Committee made the following recommendations for the projected 
allocation: 

HCCBG Service    HCCBG    Match   
In-Home Aide     $120,679              $13,409 
Congregate Meals      $43,795    $4,866   
Home Delivered Meals     $80,767    $8,974 
Transportation       $12,798    $1,422 
   
 
The Title III-D funds, which include Health Screening and Medication Management funds, must 
be used for Evidence Based Health Promotion classes for FY 2013.  These funds will remain at 
the Area Agency on Aging to support EBHP programs across the region.  The Family Caregiver 
Support Program funds (Respite II) have been reduced by 10%. 

Non-HCCBG Service           Non-HCCBG    Match   
Family Caregiver Respite II       $3,601        $0 
 
 
Upon approval, these funds will become part of the Project on Aging FY 2013 budget. 
 
I plan to be present for discussion or questions. 
 
 
 
cc: Karin Bare, Administrative Assistant II 

061912 BCC Meeting

122



NAME AND ADDRESS Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
COMMUNITY SERVICE PROVIDER DOA-732 (Rev. 2/12)
Watauga County Project on Aging      County Funding Plan County:   Watauga 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Boone, NC  28607 Provider Services Summary  REVISION #     , DATE:   

                 A B C D E F G H I
Ser. Delivery Projected Projected Projected Projected 
(Check One) Block Grant Funding Required Net* NSIP Total HCCBG Reimburse. HCCBG Total 

Services Direct Purch. Access In-Home Other Total Local Match Serv Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate Clients Units

In-Home Aide I X 96,543 \\\\\\\\\\\ 10,727 107,270 0 107,270 5,932 18.0833 170 20,520
In-Home Aide II X 24,136 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 2,682 26,818 0 26,818 1,483 18.0836 25 5,130
Congregate Meals X 43,795 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 4,866 48,661 10,000 58,661 8,085 6.0187 475 19,500

Home Delivered Meals X 80,767 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 8,974 89,741 15,000 104,741 14,701 6.1044 200 32,000

Transportation X 12,798 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 1,422 14,220 0 14,220 3,125 4.5504 30 8,090

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

Total \\\\\\\ \\\\\\\ 12798 120,679 124,562 258,039 28,671 286,710 25,000 311,710 33,326 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 900 85,240
*Adult Day Care & Adult Day Health Care Net Service Cost

ADC ADHC
Daily Care Certification of required minimum local match availability.
Transportation Required local match will be expended simultaneously Authorized Signature, Title Date
Administrative with Block Grant Funding. Community Service Provider
Net Ser. Cost  Total

Signature, County Finance Officer          Date Signature, Chairman, Board of Commissioners Date

061912 BCC Meeting

123



NAME AND ADDRESS  Non - Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
COMMUNITY SERVICE PROVIDER DOA-732 (Rev. 2/12)
Watauga County Project on Aging      County Funding Plan County:  Watauga 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Boone, NC  28607 Provider Services Summary  REVISION #     , DATE: 

                 A B C D E F G H I
Ser. Del. Projected Projected Projected Projected 

(Check One) Non-Block Grant Funding Required Net* NSIP Total NonHCCBG Reimburse.NonHCCBG Total 
Services Direct Purch. Access In-Home Other Total Local Match Serv Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate Clients Units

\\\\\\\\\\\\

Family Caregiver \\\\\\\\\\\\
Respite II X 3,601 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 0 3,601 0 3,601 200 18.0050 6 258

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

Total \\\\\\\ \\\\\\\ 0 3,601 0 3,601 0 3,601 0 3,601 200 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 6 258
*Adult Day Care & Adult Day Health Care Net Service Cost

ADC ADHC
Daily Care Certification of required minimum local match availability.
Transportation Required local match will be expended simultaneously Authorized Signature, Title Date
Administrative with Non-Block Grant Funding Community Service Provider
Net Ser. Cost  Total

Signature, County Finance Officer          Date Signature, Chairman, Board of Commissioners Date

061912 BCC Meeting

124



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

SANITATION MATTERS 

A. Bid Award Request to Pave Three Container Sites 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Bids were solicited from four (4) companies for paving three container sites; Deep Gap, Landfill, 
and Valle Crucis.  The County received two quotes for two of the sites and three quotes for one 
of the sites.  
 
Mr. J.V. Potter, Operations Service Director, will recommend the Board approve the bid 
submitted by Moretz Paving in the amount of $94,491 for paving all three sites as they were the 
lowest responsible and responsive bidder.  A budget amendment recognizing an additional 
$94,491 from the sale of recycled materials will be forthcoming. 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

125



061912 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

SANITATION MATTERS 

B. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Updates to the Solid 
Waste Management Plan 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Potter will request the Board schedule a public hearing for the July 24, 2012, meeting to 
allow citizen comment on the proposed updates to the solid waste management plan. 
 
Board action is requested to schedule the public hearing  
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

127



WATAUGA COUNTY TO HOLD PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Watauga County will hold a public hearing on _______, _____, 2012 at ____ PM in the 
Commissioners’ Board Room.  The purpose of the public hearing will be to gather citizen input 
on the county’s Solid Waste Management Plan Update.  The update is required by state law 
every three years as a means for counties and municipalities to make changes to their ten-year 
solid waste management plans. Watauga County’s Solid Waste Management Plan was adopted 
in 1997, updated in three-year intervals, and outlines all aspects of solid waste collection and 
disposal in the county. Copies of the Update are available for public examination at ________.   

061912 BCC Meeting

128



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Built Swap Shop at the 
transfer station 

Develop 
community 
composting 
program at old 
landfill site 

Infrastructure for 
collection, lack of 
funding, interest 
from private 
company to do this 

   

Ongoing junk mail 
reduction program 

     

Restore located before 
scale house (2008) 

     

Recycling bins provided 
to public (2007) 

     

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

129



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Continue collection of 
solid waste  and 
recycling at ten staffed 
convenience centers 

     

Conversion of old 
transfer station to new 
recycling center (2006) 

     

New transfer station 
completed (2005) 

     

      

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

130



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Household batteries 
added to recycling 
program (2007) 

  Develop asphalt 
shingle recycling 
program 

July 2014 Unsure at present because 
shingles mixed with other 
commercial waste.  We will 
begin using separate weigh 
code for shingle loads. 

Restore located before 
scale house (2008) 

     

Electronics added to 
recycling program 
(2008) 

     

Pasteboard added to 
recycling program 
(2008) 

     

Compact fluorescent 
lights added to recycling 
program (2008) 

     

 

061912 BCC Meeting

131



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Mulch yard waste 
twice/year 

Develop 
residential 
backyard 
composting 
program 

Lack of funding    

Rent trammel screen for 
mulch 

Develop 
community 
composting 
program at old 
landfill site 

Infrastructure for 
collection, lack of 
funding, interest 
from private 
company to do this 

   

      

      

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

132



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Contract with GDS for 
disposal at        
(expires in April 2014) 

None  None   

      

      

      

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

133



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE 
DUE 

EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Household hazardous 
waste collection held 
twice annually 

  Medication Take Bake 
Program began in 
conjunction with bi-annual 
HHWD  

October 
2009 

Approximately 300,000 pills 
per year 

Used motor and cooking 
oil collected at transfer 
station 

  Begin looking at a 
permanent collection site for 
household hazardous waste  

2013 30 tons/year x 10 = 300 tons 

Lead-acid batteries 
collected at transfer 
station 

     

Compact fluorescent 
lights are collected at all 
convenience centers for 
recycling (2008) 

     

Household batteries are 
collected at all 
convenience centers for 
recycling (2008) 

     

Oil filter collection are 
collected at transfer 
station (2009) 

     

 

061912 BCC Meeting

134



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete Key Actions Date Due Est. Tons Diverted In 10th 
Year 

Adoption of a revised 
solid waste ordinance 
(January 2004) 

  Solid Waste 
Officer/Deputy 

2010  

      

      

      

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

135



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

Information about waste 
reduction, reuse and 
recycling provided on 
county website 

  Provide all county 
schools with recycling 
bins for plastic bottles 
and aluminum cans to 
add to paper collection 

September 
2010 

20 tons/year x 10 = 200 tons 

Puppet show on 
recycling and reuse 
provided to schools and 
at festivals  

     

Waste reduction and 
recycling information 
regularly given to 
residents at all 
convenience centers 

     

Regular press releases 
sent to local media 
about recycling and 
special events 

     

Displays on recycling 
reduction set up at 
festivals and special 
events 

     

061912 BCC Meeting

136



Tours of recycling 
center given for public 
school and university 
students 

     
061912 BCC Meeting

137



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

New contract with 
Garbage Disposal 
Services in April 2009 

None  None   

      

      

      

      

 

061912 BCC Meeting

138



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

      

      

      

      

      

061912 BCC Meeting

139



PLANNING ELEMENTS 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT 10 YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PLANNING YEARS 2009-2019 
 
Circle appropriate element: 
Reduction Collection Recycling/Reuse Composting and Mulching Incineration (with/without energy recovery) 

Disposal Special Waste  Illegal Disposal/Litter  Education with Community and Through Schools 

Transfer outside geographical area  Purchasing Recycled Products Disaster Response  

 
COMPLETED 
ACTIONS 

INCOMPLETE ACTIONS NEW/REVISED ACTIONS 

KEY ACTIONS KEY ACTIONS WHY 
INCOMPLETE 

KEY ACTIONS DATE DUE EST. TONS DIVERTED 
IN 10TH YEAR 

 The county has 5 acres 
for an influx of C&D 
and LCID at the transfer 
station in times of 
disaster 

County looking 
for disaster sites  
To be approved 

No response from 
Land owner 

Disaster response 
Training 2012 

  

      

      

      

      

 
 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

140



WATAUGA COUNTY 

RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND ENDORSING THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
UPDATE OF 2009 FOR WATAUGA COUNTY  

WHEREAS, it is a priority of this community to protect human health and the environment through safe 
and effective management of municipal solid waste;  

WHEREAS, the reduction of the amount and toxicity of the local waste stream is a goal of this community;  

WHEREAS, equitable and efficient delivery of solid waste management services is an essential 
characteristic of the local solid waste management system;  

WHEREAS, it is a goal of the community to maintain and improve its physical appearance and to reduce 
the adverse effects of illegal disposal and littering;  

WHEREAS, Watauga County recognizes its role in the encouragement of recycling markets by purchasing 
recycled products;  

WHEREAS, involvement and education of the citizenry is critical to the establishment of an effective 
local solid waste program;  

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has placed planning responsibility on local government for the 
management of solid waste;  

WHEREAS, NC General Statute 130A-309.09A(b) requires each unit of local government, either individually 
or in cooperation with other units of local government, to update the Ten Year Comprehensive Solid Waste 
Management Plan at least every three years;  

WHEREAS, the Watauga County Solid Waste and Recycling Department has undertaken and completed a 
long-range planning effort to evaluate the appropriate technologies and strategies available to manage solid 
waste effectively;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF WATAUGA 
COUNTY:  

That Watauga County's 2009 Ten Year Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan Update is 
accepted and endorsed and placed on file with Clerk to the Board on this day, __________ 2009.  

ATTEST:  

061912 BCC Meeting

141



061912 BCC Meeting

142



061912 BCC Meeting

143



061912 BCC Meeting

144



061912 BCC Meeting

145



061912 BCC Meeting

146



061912 BCC Meeting

147



061912 BCC Meeting

148



061912 BCC Meeting

149



061912 BCC Meeting

150



061912 BCC Meeting

151



061912 BCC Meeting

152



061912 BCC Meeting

153



061912 BCC Meeting

154



061912 BCC Meeting

155



061912 BCC Meeting

156



061912 BCC Meeting

157



061912 BCC Meeting

158



061912 BCC Meeting

159



061912 BCC Meeting

160



061912 BCC Meeting

161



061912 BCC Meeting

162



061912 BCC Meeting

163



061912 BCC Meeting

164



061912 BCC Meeting

165



061912 BCC Meeting

166



061912 BCC Meeting

167



061912 BCC Meeting

168



061912 BCC Meeting

169



061912 BCC Meeting

170



061912 BCC Meeting

171



061912 BCC Meeting

172



061912 BCC Meeting

173



061912 BCC Meeting

174



061912 BCC Meeting

175



061912 BCC Meeting

176



061912 BCC Meeting

177



061912 BCC Meeting

178



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

179



 

 

                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

         

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 

DATE:  June 19, 2012 

 

The following budget amendments require the approval of the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

283102-312111  Tax Revenue Todd Fire Dist    $2,500 

284340-469911  Payment to Todd Fire Dist  $2,500 

283102-312107  Tax Revenue Cove Creek Fire Dist   $9,500 

284340-469907  Payment to Cove Creek Fire Dist $9,500 

 

To recognize additional estimated fire tax district revenues and payments above budgeted 

amounts due to fire departments. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103300-343315  Homeland Sec Grant IM Classes   $16,084 

104330-449912  Homeland Sec Grant IM Classes $16,084 

 

Per Board action June 5, 2012; to recognize grant revenue and expense for incident management 

training classes.  

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

663740-381000  Sale of Recycling Scrap     $94,491 

667420-457001  Capital Outlay-Land Improvements $94,491 

 

To recognize additional revenue to fund paving contract. 

 

 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

180



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
1. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of the Department of 

Communications and Emergency Services Supervised by the County Manager 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
As part of the consolidation of the emergency communications, the Board is required to adopt a 
resolution transferring the operations and management of the 911 emergency communications 
center from the Watauga County Sheriff to the Watauga County Manager.  The County Attorney 
has reviewed the resolution as presented. 
 
Board action is requested to adopt the resolution transferring the operations and management of 
the 911 emergency communications center from the Sheriff to the County Manager.  The 
effective date of the resolution will be the date the County is issued an ORI (originating routing 
identifier) from the North Carolina SBI.   
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

181



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF 

COMMUNICATIONS AND EMERGENCY SERVICES SUPERVISED BY COUNTY 
MANAGER  

 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners and the Town 
Council of the Town of Blowing Rock support the consolidation of the existing 
Communications Centers into an integrated PSAP management structure and 
by this Resolution intend to authorize and to support an application for grant 
funding under the E-911 Consolidation Program adopted by the North Carolina 
911 Board; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Sheriff has faithfully served the County 
of Watauga and already is responsible for the administration of the Watauga 
County Sheriff’s Office, Watauga County Jail, and all duties and obligations 
arising by virtue of the Office of Sheriff; and  
 
 WHEREAS, 14A N.C.A.C. 04.0301 provides that the governing body of 
each county is responsible for emergency management within the geographical 
limits of such county and all emergency management efforts within the county 
will be coordinated by the county, including activities of municipalities within 
the county; and  
 
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. 166A-7(a)(2) provides that the governing body 
of each county which establishes an emergency management agency pursuant 
to this authorization will appoint a coordinator who will have a direct 
responsibility for the organization, administration, and operation of the county 
program and will be subject to the direction and guidance of such governing 
body; and  
 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. 166A-7(b)(1) provides that counties and 
municipalities are authorized to form joint emergency management agency’s 
composed of a county and one or more municipalities within the county’s 
borders, between two or more counties, or between two or more counties and 
one or more municipalities within the borders of those counties; and  

061912 BCC Meeting

182



 
 WHEREAS, The Watauga County Board of Commissioners desire to 
transfer 911 emergency communications center management from the 
Watauga County Sheriff to the Watauga County Manager.   
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
the County of Watauga as follows: 
 
1. Watauga County has established an emergency management agency 
pursuant to statutory authorization and hereby appoints as coordinator the 
Watauga County Manager, who will have a direct responsibility for the 
organization, administration, and operation of the county program and will be 
subject to the direction and guidance of the Watauga County Commissioners. 
 
2. All supervision responsibilities for Public Safety Answering Points shall 
be the responsibility of the Watauga County Manager.   
 
3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date the County receives an 
ORI (Original Routing Identifier) from the North Carolina State Bureau of 
Investigation (SBI). 
 
ADOPTED this the_____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
              
      Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
      Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
     
 
ATTEST: 
  
 
_____________________________     (SEAL)  
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

183



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

184



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
2. Proposed Management Control Agreement Regarding the Sheriff’s Office and 911 

Dispatch Center 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The enclosed agreement is required between the Sheriff’s Office and the new communication 
center to allow access to criminal records, driver’s license information and other National Crime 
Information Center and Division of Criminal Investigation information that is required by law 
enforcement agencies in their daily activities.  The agreement is included with the originating 
routing identifier (ORI) request that is to be sent to the North Carolina SBI for the issuance of a 
new ORI for the new communications center.  The new communications center cannot operate 
without this agreement. 
 
Staff requests the Board approve the agreement as presented and reviewed by the County 
Attorney.   
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

185



MANAGEMENT CONTROL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND  
COMMUNICATIONS AND EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

REGARDING NCIC PROCEDURES AND ACCESS 
 
 
This document is an agreement between the Watauga County Sheriff's Office NC0950000, a 
criminal justice agency, and the Watauga County Communications and Emergency Services 
Department (hereinafter referred to as the 911 Dispatch Center), a non-criminal justice agency; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is not the purpose of this agreement to infringe upon or impair the normal 
right of the Director of the 911 Dispatch Center to make and place in effect his/her decisions 
concerning the operation of the 911 Dispatch Center; any of the rights, powers or authority the 
911 Dispatch Center Director had prior to the signing of this agreement is retained, except that 
specifically abridged, delegated, granted, or modified by this agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, various statutes, regulations and rules require that certain conditions be met 

to ensure the privacy and security of NCIC; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of the 911 Dispatch Center supervises the dispatch center and 

the associated computer equipment that provides the criminal justice agencies with access to 
NCIC; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 911 Dispatch Center performs all functions of NCIC for the criminal 

justice agencies served by the 911 Dispatch Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the criminal justice agencies served by the 911 Dispatch Center have 

signed interagency service agreements with the 911 Dispatch Center; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Watauga County Sheriff's Office participates in the National Crime 

Information Center which requires that all computers, electronic switches, and manual terminals 
interfaced directly with the NCIC computer for the interstate exchange of criminal history 
information must be under the management control of criminal justice agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, management control, includes but is not limited to, the supervision of 

equipment, systems design, programming, and operating procedures necessary for the 
development and implementation of the computerized criminal history program and such 
management control guarantees the priority service needed by the criminal justice community. 

 
THEREFORE, both parties agree to the following: 

 
The Sheriff of the Watauga County Sheriff's Office is hereby designated to have management 
control of the 911 Dispatch Center operations insofar as they are utilized in the storage, 
processing, handling, and dissemination of criminal justice information, and the Sheriff, or his 

061912 BCC Meeting

186



representative, is authorized to take all action necessary to put and keep the 911 Dispatch Center 
in compliance with all statutes, regulations, and other laws relating to the privacy and security of 
NCIC computerized criminal justice information.  Management control shall include, but not be 
limited to, the right to do the following things: 
 

• Set and enforce priorities governing the operation of computers, circuits, and 
telecommunications terminals to process criminal justice information, insofar as that 
equipment is used to process, store, or transmit criminal justice information. 

• Set and enforce standards for the processing, storing, or transmitting of criminal justice 
information in accordance with NCIC guidelines. 

 
 
SECURITY 
 
The 911 Dispatch Center agrees to abide by all current and hereafter approved rules of the 
National Crime Information Centers (NCIC), including but not limited to, all requirements of the 
NCIC Security Policy.  The compliance with those requirements shall be determined by the 
Watauga County Sheriff's Office. 
 
Computers having access to NCIC must have the proper software and hardware controls, 
implemented under the supervision of the Watauga County Sheriff's Office, to prevent criminal 
history data from being accessible to any terminals other than authorized terminals. 
 
The 911 Dispatch Center must have adequate physical security, as determined by the Watauga 
County Sheriff's Office, to protect against any unauthorized personnel gaining access to the 
terminals, computer equipment or any of the stored data. 
 
Employees of the 911 Dispatch Center must be screened thoroughly under the authority and 
supervision of the Watauga County Sheriff's Office, in accordance with NCIC policy.  This 
screening applies to criminal justice and non-criminal justice personnel, including non-criminal 
justice maintenance and technical personnel.  This screening will be done under the guidelines 
established in the NCIC Security policy.   
 
All visitors to the 911 Dispatch Center must be accompanied by staff personnel at all times. 
 
All terminals having access to the NCIC must be physically placed in secure locations, as 
determined by the Watauga County Sheriff's Office. 
 
Access to all terminals must be restricted to the minimum number of authorized employees 
needed to complete the work. 
 
Printed copies of criminal history data obtained from NCIC must be afforded security to prevent 
any unauthorized access to or use of the data.  When the printout is no longer needed, it must be 
filed in a secure file or destroyed. 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

187



No dial-up access will be permitted to a computer or a terminal with access to NCIC unless that 
dial-up access has been approved by the Watauga County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
No terminal will access NCIC, and no data will be requested or obtained through these networks 
without the approval of the Watauga County Sheriff's Office. 
 
 
TRAINING 
 
All terminal operators must be trained according to NCIC standards. 
 
 
RECORD KEEPING 
 
The non-criminal justice agency agrees to allow the implementation of all NCIC records keeping 
rules, including but not limited to: 
 

• Timeliness of entry/cancellation/void 
• Quality assurance of entries 
• Validation of entries 
• Ten-minute hit confirmation 
• Dissemination of NCIC information 
• Logging of criminal history inquiries 
• Use of the system for authorized purposes only 

 
The 911 Dispatch Center has in its control the recording device that records all incoming 911 
calls, administrative telephone lines within the 911 Dispatch center and all radio transmissions. 
The Director of the 911 Dispatch Center shall maintain all recordings for the time specified by 
statute, currently thirty (30) days. When recordings from this device are requested, the 911 
communications center will release these recordings only to the head of a serviced agency or his 
designee. No recordings shall be released to the media without first being given to the agency 
head.  
 
The 911 Dispatch Center, through its supervisor, will prepare and follow written procedures 
concerning these and all NCIC record keeping requirements.  Those procedures will be 
established, maintained, and followed as determined by the Watauga County Sheriff's Office in 
accordance with NCIC policies. 
 
 
MONITORING AND AUDITING 
 
The 911 Dispatch Center agrees to allow the Watauga County Sheriff’s Office necessary access, 
as determined by Watauga County Sheriff's Office, to the physical locations, any computer 
programs, any computer files, and/or computer activities necessary to implement and enforce this 
agreement.  The Watauga County Sheriff’s Office shall have the authority to monitor, inspect 

061912 BCC Meeting

188



and audit all procedures and systems pursuant to this agreement and any other matters concerned 
with the security of criminal justice information systems. 
 
The 911 Dispatch Center agrees to cooperate with the Watauga County Sheriff's Office in the 
implementation of this agreement, and to accomplish the directives of the Watauga County 
Sheriff's Office under the provisions of this agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be 
executed by the proper officers and officials. 
 
 
WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  911 DISPATCH CENTER 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________ 
Sheriff        Director 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________ 
Date        Date 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

189



GENERAL  
 
The criminal justice agency will not manage the day to day operations of the dispatch center, but 
may establish and enforce the priorities necessary to meet DPS and FBI policies regarding  
NCIC system use. 
 
The non-criminal justice agency agrees to cooperate with the criminal justice agency in the 
implementation of this agreement, and to accomplish the directives of the criminal justice agency 
under the provisions of this agreement. 
 
 
 

Non-Criminal Justice Agency  Criminal Justice Agency 
   

Signature  Signature 
   
   

Printed Name  Printed Name 
   

 
Title  Title 
   

Date  Date 
   
   

 
 

Signature 
 

 Signature 
 
 

   
 
 

 Printed Name 
 

Title  Title 
   

Date  Date 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

190



 
APPENDIX A 
 
Appropriate environmental security measures would include: 
 

• A back-up power supply or uninterruptible power source. 
• Environment monitors and controls for temperature, air conditioning, humidity, etc. 
• Emergency lighting. 
• Adequate fire detection/suppression devices. 
• Emergency shutdown of system and/or power devices. 
• Duplicate computer files, if applicable, (as a countermeasure for unauthorized destruction 

of original files) which are to be maintained off premise.  Computer tapes or discs should 
be locked in a safe (fireproof) storage area under the control of senior agency personnel.  
Secondary storage (off-site location) will be used to back-up files. 

 
APPENDIX B 
 
The standards apply to all Center personnel with access to network systems as defined in Title 28 
CFR, Part 20 to CHRI data, including, but not limited to: 
 

• Management personnel who direct criminal justice related software, hardware, or 
dispatch functions. 

• Supervisory personnel who supervise criminal justice related software, hardware, or 
dispatch functions; or have terminal access to criminal justice data either directly or 
through their subordinates; or who have general responsibility for criminal justice related 
data storage, switching, transmission and logging. 

• Personnel involved in analysis, evaluation and/or programming of criminal justice related 
data stored, switches, transmitted or logged by the center. 

• Non Informational Technologies personnel who regularly provide necessary software or 
hardware installation, modification or maintenance in the dispatch center. 

• Non Information Technologies personnel who provide temporary and necessary software, 
hardware or telecommunications installation, modification or maintenance, or such other 
services as deemed necessary by the Communications and Emergency Services Director. 

• All other persons with direct access to the dispatch center or terminals with access to the 
state’s telecommunications system. 

 

061912 BCC Meeting

191



Blank Page 
 
 

061912 BCC Meeting

192



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
3. Proposed Interlocal Governmental Agreement Regarding Consolidation of 911 

Dispatch Services for Watauga County and the Town of Blowing Rock 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County has received the Interlocal Governmental Agreement adopted and signed by the 
Town of Blowing Rock regarding consolidation of 911 dispatch services.  The initial year of the 
agreement calls for the Town of Blowing Rock to provide funding in the amount of $165,015, 
with each subsequent year’s funding subject to a CPI increase. 
 
Staff requests the Board approve the agreement as presented and reviewed by the County 
Attorney. 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

193



061912 BCC Meeting

194



061912 BCC Meeting

195



061912 BCC Meeting

196



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
4. Establishment of the Watauga County Communications and Emergency Services 

Advisory Committee 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Interlocal Governmental Agreement regarding consolidation of 911 dispatch service calls 
for the establishment of an advisory committee.  The purpose of the committee is to advise the 
County on matters related to communications and emergency services and recommend standards, 
policies, procedures, protocols, and actions to maintain and enhance the quality of 
communications and emergency services.   
 
Staff has prepared a list of potential members for the committee.  As this is an informal 
committee and only makes recommendations to the County, the Board may wish to direct the 
County Manager to request representatives from each one of the organizations listed and 
organize the initial meeting.  Once the County Manager receives the recommended 
representatives, the committee could proceed forward or, if the Board so desires, the 
representatives could be brought back to the Board for formal approval. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

197



061912 BCC Meeting

198



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The first meeting in July has been cancelled due to the adoption of the annual budget and the 
beginning of a new fiscal year.  Also, the primary run-off is slated for July 17, 2012, requiring 
the use of the Commissioners’ Board Room as a polling place; therefore, the July 17, 2012, 
Board meeting has been rescheduled to July 24, 2012, at 5:30 PM.   
 
 
  

061912 BCC Meeting

199



AGENDA ITEM 15: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 16: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 17: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

061912 BCC Meeting

200


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the June 19, 2012 Agenda
	Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Ordinance
	Sheriff’s Office LiveScan Contract Renewal Requests
	Tourism Development Authority’s (TDA) Proposed Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Encroachment On Pine Run Road
	Appalachian Regional Library (ARL) Interlocal Agreement Revisions
	Planning and Inspection Matters
	A.  Request for Acceptance of Civil Penalty Settlement
	B.  Proposed Amendment to HCCOG Agreement for the Provision of Grant Management Assistance for the 2009 CDBG SSH Rehabilitation Program
	C.  Proposed Contract for Bookshire Wetlands Project

	Public Hearings to Allow Citizen Comment
	A.  Proposed Changes to Fire District Boundaries
	B.  Proposed ROAP Grant Application for Transportation Services

	Parks and Recreation Proposed AppalCART Contract Renewal
	Project On Aging Matters
	A.  Proposed AppalCART Contract Renewal
	B.  FY 2013 H&CCBG Allocation Request

	Sanitation Matters
	A.  Bid Award Request to Pave Three Container Sites
	B.  Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Updates to the Solid Waste Management Plan
	Budget Amendments
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Communications and Emergency Services Matters
	1.  Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of the Department of Communications and Emergency Services Supervised by the County Manager 
	2.  Proposed Management Control Agreement Regarding the Sheriff's Office and 911 Dispatch Center
	3.  Proposed Interlocal Governmental Agreement Regarding Consolidation of 911 Dispatch Services for Watauga County and the Town of Blowing Rock
	4.  Establishment of the Watauga County Communications and Emergency Services Advisory Committee
	B.  Announcements


	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	061912 Agenda.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




